
Tony Kershaw
Director of Law and Assurance

If calling please ask for:

Rob Castle on 033 022 22546
Email: rob.castle@westsussex.gov.uk

www.westsussex.gov.uk

County Hall 
Chichester
West Sussex 
PO19 1RQ
Switchboard 
Tel no (01243) 777100

8 January 2019

Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee

A meeting of the committee will be held at 10.30 am on Wednesday, 16 
January 2019 at County Hall, Chichester.

Tony Kershaw
Director of Law and Assurance

Agenda

10.30 am 1.  Declarations of Interest 

Members and officers must declare any pecuniary or personal 
interest in any business on the agenda. They should also make 
declarations at any stage such an interest becomes apparent 
during the meeting. Consideration should be given to leaving 
the meeting if the nature of the interest warrants it.  If in doubt 
please contact Democratic Services before the meeting.

10.32 am 2.  Urgent Matters 

Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency by 
reason of special circumstances, including cases where the 
Committee needs to be informed of budgetary or performance 
issues affecting matters within its terms of reference, which 
have emerged since the publication of the agenda.

10.33 am 3.  Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee (Pages 5 - 
12)

The Committee is asked to agree the minutes of the meeting 
held on 12 December 2018 (cream paper).

10.35 am 4.  Responses to Recommendations (Pages 13 - 14)

The Committee is asked to note the responses to 
recommendations made at the 15 November meeting from 

a) Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust

b) The Cabinet Member for Adults & Health – to follow.

Public Document Pack

Page 1



and from the 12 December meeting from 

c) The Cabinet Member for Adults & Health – to follow.

10.45 am 5.  Forward Plan of Key Decisions (Pages 15 - 22)

Extract from the Forward Plan dated 21 December.

An extract from any Forward Plan published between the date 
of despatch of the agenda and the date of the meeting will be 
tabled at the meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to 
enquire into any of the forthcoming decisions within its 
portfolio.

10.55 am 6.  West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 
2017/18 (Pages 23 - 58)

Report by the Independent Chair of the West Sussex 
Safeguarding Adults Board.

The report documents the activity and initiatives overseen by 
the Board during 2017/18.

11.35 am 7.  South East Coast Ambulance Service Update (Pages 59 - 
74)

12.15 pm 8.  West Sussex Joint Health & Wellbeing Board Strategy 
(Pages 75 - 132)

Report by Director of Public Health.

The report provides the committee with an overview of the 
proposed Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy for the next five 
years.

12.45 pm 9.  Possible Items for Future Scrutiny 

Members to mention any items which they believe to be of 
relevance to the business of the Select Committee, and suitable 
for scrutiny, e.g. raised with them by constituents arising from 
central government initiatives etc.

If any member puts forward such an item, the Committee’s role 
at this meeting is just to assess, briefly, whether to refer the 
matter to its Business Planning Group (BPG) to consider in 
detail.

12.47 pm 10.  Requests for Call-in 

Requests were made to call-in the following proposed decisions 
on: -

Page 2



a) Housing Related Support

b) Local Assistance Network

c) Minimum Income Guarantee for Working Age Adults

A majority of Business Planning Group members rejected all 
three requests.

12.50 pm 11.  Date of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Committee will be held on 15 March 
2019 at 10.30 am at County Hall, Chichester.  Probable agenda 
items include:

 Dementia Framework 2014-19 Update

Any member wishing to place an item on the agenda for the 
meeting must notify the Director of Law and Assurance by 28 
February 2019.

To all members of the Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee

12 December 2018 – At a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Select 
Committee held at 10.30 am at County Hall, Chichester.

Present: Mr Turner (Chairman)

Dr Walsh
Mrs Arculus, Arrived at 
10.40
Mr Barling
Mrs Bridges
Ms Flynn
Mrs Jones

Dr O'Kelly
Mr Petts
Mrs Smith
Cllr Bickers
Cllr Blampied
Cllr Belsey

Cllr Belben
Cllr Boram
Cllr Coldwell
Miss Russell

Apologies were received from Lt Cdr Atkins, Cllr Neville, Mrs Bennett, Mr Cloake, 
Mrs Dennis, Mrs Hall, Mr High and Ms Lord

Absent: Mr Wickremaratchi

Also in attendance: Mrs Jupp, Mr Baldwin, Mrs Mullins and Mr Marshall

Part I

30.   Declarations of Interest 

30.1 In accordance with the code of conduct the following personal 
interests were declared in relation to item 6, Strategic Budget Options: -

 Miss Russell – as Chair of the Aldingbourne Trust
 Dr Walsh – as a member of Arun District Council
 Mr Turner – as a member of Worthing Borough Council
 Mrs Jones – as a member of Mid Sussex District Council
 Cllr Boram – as a member of Adur District Council
 Cllr Belsey - as a member of Mid Sussex District Council
 Mrs Smith – as a member of Crawley Borough Council
 Mrs Bridges - as a member of Adur District Council
 Dr O’Kelly – as a member of Chichester District Council
 Mr Baldwin – as a member of Horsham District Council
 Cllr Blampied - as a member of Arun District Council
 Cllr Bickers - as a member of Worthing Borough Council
 Cllr Belben - as a member of Crawley Borough Council
 Cllr Coldwell – as a member of Horsham District Council

31.   Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee 

31.1 Resolved – that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 
be approved as a correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman.

32.   Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



32.1 Resolved – that the Committee asks its Business Planning Group to 
consider whether the proposed decision- on the Tobacco Control Strategy 
for West Sussex should be considered by a future meeting of the 
committee.

33.   Strategic Budget Options 

33.1 The Committee considered reports by the Executive Director, 
Children, Adults, Families, Health & Education and Interim Director of 
Adults’ Services on Housing Related Support and the Local Assistance 
Network (copies appended to the signed minutes) and a video produced 
by the West Sussex Coalition of Providers.

33.2 The Cabinet Member for Adults & Health introduced the item and 
thanked the Coalition for its comprehensive analysis report and 
engagement throughout the consultation. She also thanked everyone who 
had responded to the consultation and was particularly encouraged by the 
Coalition’s recognition of the need for some reform of services, as well as 
its willingness to explore more efficient ways to deliver them. The Cabinet 
Member also made the following points: -

 The County Council had had to make substantial savings since 2010/11 
and faced a gross budget gap of £145m over the next four years, due 
in part to rising demand for adults and children’s social services  

 The County Council had lobbied local MPs and Ministers about the need 
for additional funding, but it had to set a balanced budget and 
therefore had to look at spending, particularly at that which was 
discretionary 

 The County Council would seek to mitigate, wherever possible, the 
impact on the most vulnerable residents; and would make these 
changes in a measured and timely way with providers and partners in 
order to safeguard the essential core of the County Council’s services

 Out of the budget of £6.3m for housing related support services, some 
helped to meet statutory services whilst some contributed to the 
prevention of demand on other critical services.  The proposal is to set 
a future budget of £2.3m for housing related support contracts to meet 
those priorities and to work with partners in a careful and planned way 
to achieve that level over the next two years

 The consultation showed there was a willingness to work collaboratively 
with partners and providers to remodel services in order to achieve 
better outcomes

 Contracts had been extended to September 2019 and work would start 
as soon as possible to allow nine months to remodel these services and 
get new contracts in place

 District and borough councils showed a willingness to work 
collaboratively to bring about the best outcome for the residents of 
West Sussex  

 The Homelessness Reduction Act came into force in April 2018 - the 
district and borough councils are the housing authorities with primary 
responsibility for tackling homelessness

 Each housing authority is required to have a five year Homelessness 
Strategy, which should be reviewed and refreshed - this has been 
achieved by Worthing and Adur councils and recently by Mid Sussex 
District Council

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 Government also recommended a sub-regional approach to 
homelessness strategies in two tier areas, reflecting the overlapping 
responsibilities of housing authorities and county councils as social 
services authorities 

 A pan-West Sussex Homelessness Strategy could benefit the residents 
of West Sussex and the County Council urged the district and borough 
councils, as the authorities responsible for homelessness and housing, 
to lead the work on this, which the County Council would be keen to 
support and engage with

33.3 The Committee watched a video produced by the Coalition and then 
heard from the following people/organisations, all of whom confirmed that 
they were willing to work with the County Council towards remodelling the 
services: -

33.4 John Holmstrom, Chief Executive, Turning Tides and secretary of 
the  West Sussex Coalition of Providers told the Committee:-

 The Coalition consisted of local and national charities of all sizes 
catering for many client groups of all ages 

33.5 Hilary Bartle, Chief Executive of Stonepillow and Chair of the West 
Sussex Coalition of Providers told the Committee: -

 The proposals represented a 63% cut in funding for important services
 Existing funding levels were a lever in obtaining a further £2.5m 

funding from the Government in enhanced Housing Benefit
 The support for 8,000 people in 2017/18 cost £5.1m which avoided 

£38.3m being spent in other areas, such as children and adults’ social 
care, criminal justice and acute health care

 The timescales proposed by the County Council were challenging and 
unrealistic – a twelve month extension to contracts was sought

 The proposals would lead to more people on the streets and more 
deaths among rough sleepers, homeless people, young people, older 
people and those with mental health issues

 The recommendations did not appear to have been through a thorough 
equality impact assessment or to have taken on board the 700 
consultation responses

33.6 Nigel Lynn, Chief Executive, Arun District Council on behalf of all the 
district and borough councils in West Sussex told the Committee: -

 This was a shared responsibility involving people with chaotic lives and 
multiple issues

 There was a willingness to co-operate between authorities and 
voluntary organisations as there had been in the past e.g. with the 
national Supporting People grant before 2011

 The amount of time needed to remodel services would not be known 
until the work began as people and processes were complicated, so the 
district and borough councils were asking for up to twelve months for 
this task and believed that better outcomes could be found for West 
Sussex residents

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



33.7 Luca Badioli, Chief Executive Officer, Arun & Chichester Citizens 
Advice told the Committee: -

 Citizens Advice was concerned about the effect reduction in Local 
Assistance Network (LAN) funding would have on it as an organisation

 Citizens Advice was already in deficit and any further reduction in 
funding could mean it would have to make staff redundant and stop 
providing some services at a time of high demand (10,000 people could 
lose services)

 Citizens Advice was concerned at the effect of cuts to energy top-up 
money as 9,700 older people died every year due to the cold

33.8 Julie Martin, Chief Executive, Citizens Advice in West Sussex (north, 
south, east) told the Committee: -

 The long-term impact on health caused by debt was unknown, but 
there was a correlation between debt and mental health problems

 This would lead to worsening poverty amongst the most vulnerable 
needing more costly interventions

33.9 Jerry Westerman, Chief Superintendent, Sussex Police representing 
the Safer West Sussex Partnership told the Committee: -

 Cuts to housing related support would make West Sussex less safe as 
housing played a key part in preventing re-offending

33.10 Mark Burden, Acting Head Sussex, National Probation Service told 
the Committee: -

 This was a critical time for offender accommodation
 The probation service was managing 905 sex and violent offenders in 

West Sussex with twice as many low level offenders being managed by 
its community rehabilitation company

 Several hundred more offenders were due to be released in the first 
half of 2019

 Accommodation was the building block to the reintegration of offenders 
with supported housing being critical

 The temporary accommodation provided to dangerous offenders with 
complex needs played a vital part in protecting the public

 If the current provider was lost, another would have to be found

33.11 Martin Pannell, Associate Director for Operations and Performance, 
Coastal West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group representing all West 
Sussex clinical commissioning groups(CCGs) told the Committee: -

 The CCGs were concerned that 97% of consultation responses were 
critical of the proposals and welcomed the confirmed six month 
extension to the contracts

 They were also concerned about the timescale for remodelling services 
and whether this was sufficient

 If risks were not mitigated there would be negative affects on 
individuals and the health system with more people entering general 
and acute mental health hospitals and staying longer than before 
reducing capacity to admit other patients, especially during winter 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



33.12 Summary of Members’ comments and question responses: -

 Members raised the following concerns if funding was reduced: -

 The effect on vulnerable people and the cost implications to other 
organisations if any of these services, which included the LAN, were 
withdrawn as a result

 The Police & Crime Commissioner’s view that there would be an 
increased risk to the public from sex and violent offenders

 Insufficient time to reconfigure services 
 Some people could slip through the net if only statutory services 

were funded

 The ring-fence for the Supporting People grant was removed in 2011.  
The funding was transferred into the County Council’s core funding, 
which has been reducing continuously since then

 The County Council continued to fund HRS services that are non-
statutory for a significant period of time after other councils had cut the 
funding

 The County Council forecasts that it will have reserves of £175m at the 
end of March 2019, £155m of which are earmarked for specific uses 
with the remaining £20m to be retained for unforeseen circumstances  

 There was pressure on the County Council’s Adult Social Care budget 
with the number of older people with learning disabilities increasing

 5% of this budget paid for discretionary services so had to be reviewed
 The Government had made an extra £11m available to district and 

borough councils across the country for homelessness reduction
 District and borough councils were also under financial pressure and 

couldn’t afford to take on the funding of housing related support 
services

 The County Council had been working for some time on identifying 
buildings that it could let cheaply to district and borough councils

 The County Council had taken all responses into account and was now 
proposing not to withdraw all funding, but leave £2.3m to reconfigure 
services and carry out its statutory duties

 The consultation had shown that there was a commitment to 
partnership working and the County Council was confident that 
remodelling services could be achieved within the timescale it proposed

 Some remodelling could be done by looking at historic contracts and 
providing services differently for less money

 An officer group with representation from across all agencies would 
work on the remodelling

 The timing of the proposals conflicted with the Homeless Reduction Act, 
Rough Sleeping Strategy and the roll out of Universal Credit

 The County Council had put in a joint bid for extra funding for 
homelessness with the district and borough councils and was working 
on another bid with district and borough councils

 The strategic officer group of the district and borough councils was 
looking at how services were commissioned to erase inconsistency

 The County Council was lobbying MPs for more funding for adult social 
care

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 Some district and borough councils had homelessness strategies in 
place which would be reviewed, with a willingness to work on an 
holistic strategy across West Sussex

 Around 300 offenders would be released into West Sussex in the first 
six months of 2019

 The County Council should look elsewhere for the savings
 Social housing was a key part of all district and borough councils’ plans 

– Arun District Council was also building its own houses and paying for 
temporary accommodation – Worthing Borough Council had allocated 
£11m for temporary accommodation

 More detailed work was needed to assess the affect on children looked 
after both now and in the future if women’s refuges were closed – an 
assurance was given that the County Council’s provision for looked 
after children would not be affected

 Members were grateful to all those who had contributed to the 
consultation, through reports or in person at the meeting

33.13 Resolved – that requests that the Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Health:-

i. Has a moratorium of up to twelve months, to the end of March 
2020, in order to have the best chance to remodel and preserve 
services and therefore not reduce funding in 2019/20 in regard to 
both housing related support contracts and the LAN

ii. Identifies and engages with other stakeholders that could have a 
positive impact on housing support

iii. Supports the creation of an officer working group with 
representatives from West Sussex County Council and each of the 
housing authorities (district and borough councils) to look at how 
joint efficiencies can be sought, provision remodelled and what 
alternative funding streams could be identified and made available, 
including from other agencies, to include the development of an 
holistic homelessness strategy for West Sussex 

iv. Considers, with the housing authorities and associations, the 
overlapping geography that occurs to determine any efficiencies 
across areas of West Sussex, rather than solely housing authority 
boundaries

v. Provides detail of the impact these proposed cuts will have on West 
Sussex County Council’s internal budgets, particularly in relation to 
Adult Social Care and Children’s Services statutory obligations, and 
how it intends to discharge those duties in the absence of supported 
housing funding to local providers

vi. Provides details of proposals moving forward to a future meeting of 
the Committee which will include an invitation to members of the 
Children & Young People’s Services Select Committee

33.14 The Committee considered a report by the Executive Director, 
Children, Adults, Families, Health & Education and Interim Director of 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Adults’ Services on the Minimum Income Guarantee for Working Age 
Adults (copy appended to the signed minutes).

33.15 The Cabinet Member for Adults & Health introduced the item 
thanking individuals for responding to the consultation and groups who 
invited her and officers discuss the proposals in person. She also told the 
Committee: -

 The consultation included wider public and key stakeholders such as 
the voluntary sector and health

 People proposed new ideas, e.g. earlier advice and information, the 
County Council to work with local businesses to create more job 
opportunities or work experience

 Concern over the financial assessment service provided dominated the 
consultation – the County Council would therefore arrange to review 
the financial assessment service

 Consultation responses, the witness statements and comments from 
this committee will be considered carefully before the decision is taken 
next week

33.16 The Committee heard from Andrew Walker, co-chair of the Learning 
Disability Partnership Board who told the Committee: -

 Making people with learning disabilities pay £5 more was a disgrace 
and felt like the Council was picking on people with learning disabilities 
– cuts should be made elsewhere or council tax should be increased

 People with learning disabilities needed the money to be able to do 
things they liked to do – this proposal made people with learning 
disabilities think that it was bad to have a disability

 Cut Impact Action Now is researching the effects the proposed cuts will 
have on people with learning disabilities

 Support for people with moderate learning disabilities was cut in 2012 
and there have been cuts to public transport meaning that people with 
learning disabilities have less access to transport

 Benefits have also been cut and lots of people with learning disabilities 
are in a lot of debt with having to pay back money to the Council for 
the support they receive

 People with learning disabilities need this money to be able to go to 
social events or save for things they like to do

 The Council should be helping people with learning disabilities
 People with learning disabilities should be treated the same as other 

people, not picked on 

33.17 Summary of Members’ comments and question responses: -

 The Committee had concerns over: -
 
 the impact the proposals would have on people’s lives, especially 

their health
 no other options being considered
 potential loss of social activity
 people not being able to afford support

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 the proposals being inconsistent with the Council’s objectives to 
increase the number of people with learning difficulties in 
employment and tackle social isolation

 poor funding from Government for the Council with regard to social 
care

 Budget pressures meant that difficult decisions had to be taken
 The level of the MIG is recommended by Government. Customer 

contributions, as now, will remain means tested
 Specific impacts on individuals was not known
 Change in payments for support was unknown as the proposals were 

based on averages to give people an idea of what they might have to 
pay

 A transition period had not been considered as this would require 
further financial modelling and lead to unequal funding

 West Sussex was an expensive place to live and people with learning 
disabilities had little chance of finding work that would improve their 
income

 The Council was working on a new offer to help unpaid carers – a 
group of people who could be indirectly affected by the proposals

 Extra money from Government recently announced for social care is 
one-off, some of which also has strict conditions as to how it could be 
spent.  Using it as an alternative funding source for the Minimum 
Income Guarantee would be inadvisable

 Heating costs were covered by Disability Related Expenditure so 
weren’t counted as part of people’s income

33.17 Resolved – that the Committee welcomes the Cabinet Member for 
Adults and Health’s assurance that the financial assessment service will be 
reviewed, in response to comments received throughout the consultation 
and that work will continue with local businesses, as referred to by the 
Chairman, to improve job opportunities for working age adults with 
learning disabilities, and asks that if the proposal is to be taken forward 
that the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health considers a transition 
period for existing claimants and continues to lobby government regarding 
future funding for adult social care.

34.   Possible Items for Future Scrutiny 

34.1 The Committee agreed that the Business Planning Group should 
look at the treatment of refugees in the detention centre at Gatwick. 

35.   Date of Next Meeting 

The meeting ended at 1.37 pm

Chairman

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Trust Headquarters 
J3, Jevington Building 

Elm Grove 
Brighton General Hospital 

Brighton 
BN2 3EW  

 
Telephone: 01273 265930 

Email: siobhan.melia@nhs.net 
 

20th December 2018 
 

Dear Bryan, 
  
Thank you for your letter of 26th November 2018 regarding Matt Hancock's comments 
about the future of Community Hospitals.  I have shared your letter with our Executive 
Team and had time to reflect on Matt Hancock's comments. 
  
Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust is committed to providing high quality care 
close to where people live and we understand the passion with which communities value 
their local health facilities. 
  
We believe that Mr. Hancock was referring to District General Hospitals (e.g. Worthing and 
St Richard's Hospitals in West Sussex) when he was explaining that these community 
hospitals should not be merged or shut down. 
  
Our recent discussions have been about the sustainability and purpose of what you may 
call 'cottage hospitals'.  These hospitals have one or two wards with relatively low numbers 
of patients being cared for, in isolated units.  These cottage hospitals tend to only offer a 
small number of services and we therefore find it hard to attract staff to come and work in 
smaller units with little on-site senior support. 
  
Your letter has alerted us to the need to be very clear with our terminology when 
describing our local health care facilities.  
  
So, in answer to your question, we are aligned with Matt Hancock's view that merging or 
closing community hospitals (referring to District General Hospitals) is not always the 
solution to local health needs.  We continue to believe that there is a need to review the 
sustainability of 'cottage hospitals' to ensure we maintain patient safety and deliver good 
care. 
  
We look forward to continuing to work with the CCGs, local health and social care 
providers, patient groups, voluntary organisations and the HASC in reviewing how to best 
support communities in West Sussex. 
  

Mr. Bryan Turner 
Chairman 
Health and Adult Social Care Select 
Committee, WSCC 
 
 
Sent via email 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

http://thepulse/
mailto:siobhan.melia@nhs.net


 

 

  Page 2  

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 

Siobhan Melia 
Chief Executive 
Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Explanatory Note

The County Council must give at least 28 days’ notice of all key decisions to be taken by members or 
officers. The Forward Plan includes all key decisions and the expected month for the decision to be 
taken over a four-month period. Decisions are categorised in the Forward Plan according to the West 
Sussex Plan priorities of:

 Best Start in Life
 A Prosperous Place
 A Safe, Strong and Sustainable Place
 Independence in Later Life
 A Council that Works for the Community

The Forward Plan is updated regularly and key decisions can be taken daily.  Published decisions are 
available via this link.  The Forward Plan is available on the County Council’s website 
www.westsussex.gov.uk and from Democratic Services, County Hall, West Street, Chichester, PO19 
1RQ, all Help Points and the main libraries in Bognor Regis, Crawley, Haywards Heath, Horsham and 
Worthing.

Key decisions are those which:

 Involve expenditure or savings of £500,000 or more (except decisions in connection with 
treasury management); and/or

 Will have a significant effect on communities in two or more electoral divisions in terms of how 
services are provided. 

The following information is provided for each entry in the Forward Plan:

Decision The title of the decision, a brief summary and proposed recommendation(s)
Decision By Who will take the decision
West Sussex 
Plan priority

See above for the five priorities contained in the West Sussex Plan

Date added to 
Forward Plan

The date the proposed decision was added to the Forward Plan

Decision Month The decision will be taken on any working day in the month stated
Consultation/
Representations

Means of consultation/names of consultees and/or dates of Select Committee 
meetings and how to make representations on the decision and by when

Background 
Documents

What documents relating to the proposed decision are available (via links on the 
website version of the Forward Plan).  Hard copies of background documents are 
available on request from the decision contact.

Author The contact details of the decision report author
Contact Who in Democratic Services you can contact about the entry 

For questions about the Forward Plan contact Helena Cox on 033022 22533, email 
helena.cox@westsussex.gov.uk.

Published: 21 December 2018

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/campaigns/the-west-sussex-plan/
https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/campaigns/the-west-sussex-plan/
https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
http://www.westsussex.gov.uk/
mailto:helena.cox@westsussex.gov.uk


Forward Plan Summary

Summary of all forthcoming executive decisions in 
West Sussex Plan priority order

Decision Maker Subject Matter Date

A Strong, Safe and Sustainable Place

Executive Director Children, 
Adults, Families, Health and 

Education

Short Break Services for Family and Friends 
Carers (Adults)

 January 
2019

Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Health

Tobacco Control Strategy for West Sussex  January 
2019

Independence in Later Life

Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Health

Approval of the Vision and Strategy for 
Adult Social Care

 January 
2019

A Council that works for the Community

Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Health

Contract arrangements for Community 
Advice (Citizens Advice)

 January 
2019

Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Health

Procurement of Mortuary Services for West 
Sussex

 May 2019

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



A Strong, Safe and Sustainable Place

Executive Director Children, Adults, Families, Health and Education

Short Break Services for Family and Friends Carers (Adults)

Following Cabinet Member decision, in September 2018, (Reference Cabinet Member 
Decision Report AH3 18.19) to commence a competitive tender process  to commission a 
range of carer short breaks to begin on 1 April 2019 authority was delegated to the 
Executive Director, Children, Adults, Families, Health, and Education to  approve the 
award of Preferred Bidder Status to a number of providers. Contracts will be awarded to 
the bidders submitting the tenders that best meet requirements. Authority has also been 
delegated to the Executive  Director, Children, Adults, Families, Health and Education to 
agree to future extensions of the contracts up to a maximum of two years.  The 
Executive Director, Children, Adults, Families, Health and Education will  be asked to 
give approval to enter into Post Tender Negotiations which will allow the Authority to 
seek and secure any further areas that may add value. 

A Procurement Process, compliant with West Sussex Standing Orders and European 
Union Procurement Directives, is currently underway. It is being led by a Procurement 
Manager from within the Integrated Adults Commissioning Team of West Sussex County 
Council with advisory, assessment and evaluation input from colleagues from within the 
Council.   

Decision By  - Executive Director Children, Adults, Families, Health and 
Education

West Sussex Plan 
priority

A Safe, Strong and Sustainable Place

Date added to 
Forward Plan

27 November 2018

Decision Month  January 2019 

Consultation/ 
Representations

Extensive stakeholder consultation and engagement including all 
partners on the Carers Strategic Partnership Group.  In addition, 
Carer Support West Sussex undertook an extensive survey of 
carers regarding respite experiences to inform the re-
commissioning process.

Representations concerning this proposed decision can be made 
to the Executive Director Children, Adults, Families, Health and 
Education, via the officer contact, by the beginning of the month 
in which the decision is due to be taken.

Background 
Documents 
(via website)

None

Author Mark Greening Tel: 033 022 23758

Contact Erica Keegan Tel: 033 022 26050

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

Tobacco Control Strategy for West Sussex

The County Council is proposing to work in partnership with stakeholders to co-produce 
a West Sussex strategy for tobacco control. This will detail the West Sussex ambition to 
lead tobacco control actions which will reduce health inequalities and yield economic 
benefits.

To support this goal, public health in West Sussex will develop a Tobacco Control 
Strategy including an action plan. This will highlight how each stakeholder can support 
tobacco control as part of a whole system approach (in line with the public health 
vision).   The plan is intended to cover the period 2019 -2022; a timeframe aligned with 
the National Tobacco Control Plan.  It replaces the previous West Sussex Tobacco 
Control Operational Plan which came to an end in April 2018.  This addressed the local 
implications of national policy at the time; broadening action from stopping smoking to 
wider tobacco control.  The future strategy will target deprived areas and people with 
the greatest need based on best population data and evidence of effectiveness.  It will 
take into account changes in context since the previous plan including resources 
available to stakeholders, the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, future plans for social care 
and the NHS (such as the NHS long term view) and the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan Case for Change. It will be informed by learning from other areas 
including innovations. 
If approved, awareness of the West Sussex Tobacco Control Strategy will be raised on 
No Smoking Day, 13th March 2019 in an area of the county with a high smoking 
prevalence. 

This work will be co-ordinated and led by Public Health however the action plan will be 
owned and monitored by all stakeholders including the membership of the Smokefree 
West Sussex Partnership (SFWSP).

The Cabinet Member for Adults and Health will be asked to endorse the West Sussex 
Strategy for Tobacco Control.

Decision By Mrs Jupp - Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

West Sussex Plan 
priority

A Safe, Strong and Sustainable place

Date added to 
Forward Plan

4 December 2018

Decision Month  January 2019 

Consultation/ 
Representations

The Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee and members 
of the Smokefree West Sussex Partnership.

Representations concerning this proposed decision can be made 
to the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health, via the officer 
contact, by the beginning of the month in which the decision is 
due to be taken.

Background 
Documents 
(via website)

None

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Author Sue Carmichael Tel: 033 022 28707

Contact Erica Keegan Tel: 033 022 26050

Independence in Later Life

Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

Approval of the Vision and Strategy for Adult Social Care

The County Council is proposing to set out a vision and strategy for Adult Social Care 
that will detail the ambition for West Sussex to continue to be a great place to grow 
older and an inclusive place for all adults with disabilities, mental health issues and their 
carers.  To support this goal, within the context of an ageing population and a 
challenging financial position, adult services needs to change.  Furthermore adult 
services needs to make progress on the requirement to achieve integrated services with 
the NHS.  The strategy to deliver the vision is to work at a local level and support 
individuals to remain outside of services for as long as possible, maximising individual 
strengths and local assets to support this outcome.  Reviewing customer pathways to 
support these goals, adopting a different approach to commissioning, changing our in-
house provider offer and supporting a resilient workforce will all contribute to the 
delivery of this strategy.  However working with partners and stakeholders to co-produce 
future delivery models and provide jointed up services is also fundamental.  

The Cabinet Member for Adults and Health will be asked to endorse the vision and 
strategy for Adult Social Care.

Decision By Mrs Jupp - Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

West Sussex Plan 
priority

Independence in Later Life

Date added to 
Forward Plan

15 November 2018

Decision Month  January 2019 

Consultation/ 
Representations

External - Consultation will commence on the 15th November 
2018 and run until the 14th December 2018 via the “have your 
say” section of the website, accompanied by a survey, this will 
include an ‘easy read’ version.  Paper copies of these documents 
will be provided on request by contacting the report author.

Notifications about the consultation containing website links will 
be sent out through all stakeholder networks including: The 
District and Boroughs, Health Watch, Carers and other Voluntary 
Sector Organisations. Letters will be sent to key Chief Officers 
within the local health organisations and District and Boroughs as 
well as all local MP’s.

Internal - The vision and strategy will be discussed and shared at 
Health and Social Care Select Committee (HASC) on the 15th 
November 2018 and Information with links for staff will be sent 
out through internal communication channels

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Representations should be made to the Cabinet Member for 
Adults and Health, via the officer contact, by the beginning of the 
month in which the decision is due to be taken.

Background 
Documents 
(via website)

None

Author Sarah Farragher Tel: 033 022 28403

Contact Erica Keegan - 033 022 26050

A Council that works for the Community

Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

Contract arrangements for Community Advice (Citizens Advice)

The Cabinet Member is asked to agree to the commencement of a procurement process 
starting in January 2019 to secure a contract relating to the provision of Community 
Advice (Citizens Advice) services in West Sussex from Spring 2019. 

The County Council will procure a new service in partnership with, and at the request of, 
District & Borough partner-funders. Funding will be provided by all partners as per the 
contract specification with invoicing arrangements made with each individual local office.

The proposal is for the contract to run for two years with the possibility of a further one 
year extension. The funding level has been agreed for the first year of the contract but 
will be subject to a performance review for year two and for the further one year 
extension.  The total value of these contracts is approximately £1.1 million per annum. 

The Cabinet Member is asked to agree to the commencement of a procurement process 
starting in January 2019 to secure a contract relating to the provision of Community 
Advice (Citizens Advice) services from Spring 2019 for a period of 2+1 years and to 
delegate the awarding of the contract and decisions about future extension of these 
contracts to the Executive Director of Children, Adults, Families, Health and Education.

Decision By Mrs Jupp - Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

West Sussex Plan 
priority

A Council That Works for the Community

Date added to 
Forward Plan

21 December 2018

Decision Month  January 2019 

Consultation/ 
Representations

Representations concerning this proposed decision can be made 
to the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health, via the officer 
contact, by the beginning of the month in which the decision is 
due to be taken.

Background 
Documents 

None

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



(via website)

Author Seth Gottesman Tel: 033 022 28706

Contact Erica Keegan Tel: 033 022 26050

Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

Procurement of Mortuary Services for West Sussex

The County Council provides mortuary services throughout the county for the bodies of 
those who die in West Sussex where the death is referred to the Coroner. Current 
arrangements for this service are due to expire in 2019.

An open procurement process to determine a future model for this provision has been 
undertaken by the County Council from May 2018.  This process includes the option of 
a new mortuary built by a third party for use by the County Council to meet the service 
need. 

The Cabinet Member will be asked to agree proposals for future mortuary services for 
West Sussex and if appropriate to delegate authority to the Director of Communities to 
award a contract to the successful bidder for a design and build project to run from 
October 2018, subject to the submission of a satisfactory bid.  

The contract would need to overlap with the existing contracts to ensure the seamless 
provision of essential services during the design and any build phase.  The existing 
contracts may be terminated on six months’ notice once the progress of a design and 
build contract is clear and a date for the commencement of the new arrangement is 
established.

Decision By Mrs Jupp - Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

West Sussex Plan 
priority

A Council that Works for the Community

Date added to 
Forward Plan

4 June 2018

Decision Month  May 2019 

Consultation/ 
Representations

There has been market consultation with seven potential 
suppliers.

Representations concerning this proposed decision can be made 
to the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health at County Hall, 
Chichester by the beginning of the month in which the decision is 
due to be taken.

Background 
Documents 
(via website)

Decision report SSC03 (18/19)

Author Rachel North Tel: 033 022 22681

Contact Erica Keegan Tel: 033 022 26050

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Health & Adult Social Care Select Committee 

16 January 2019

West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18

Report by the Independent Chair of the West Sussex Safeguarding 
Adults Board 

Summary 

There is a legal duty, under the Care Act (2014), to have a Safeguarding Adults 
Board (SAB) to ensure the following three statutory duties are met:

 To develop and publish a strategic plan setting out how it will meet its 
objectives and how its member and partner agencies will contribute to this;

 To publish an annual report detailing how effective its work has been; 
 To commission Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) for any cases which meet 

the criteria for such reviews.

In response, the West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board (WSSAB) has produced an 
annual report for 2017/18 documenting the activity and initiatives overseen by the 
Board during that year.  

The focus for scrutiny

The Committee is invited to consider whether sufficient action is being taken to 
ensure that adults in West Sussex are being protected from abuse and neglect as 
reported in the WSSAB Annual Report 2017/18 and whether there any issues 
arising from the detail of the WSSAB Annual Report 2017/18 requires any further 
scrutiny.

Proposal 

1. Background and Context 

1.1 Although there was already an established Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) 
in West Sussex  prior to 2015, the statutory requirement for one came into 
force  in April 2015 under the Care Act (2014) which, specifies the Board’s 
three statutory responsibilities.

1.2 SABs’ three statutory duties are that it must:
 

 develop and publish a strategic plan setting out how it will meet its 
objectives and how its member and partner agencies will contribute to 
this;

 publish an annual report detailing how effective its work has been; 
 commission Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) for any cases which 

meet the criteria for these.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

http://www.scie.org.uk/care-act-2014/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-boards-checklist-and-resources/strategic-plans/index.asp
http://www.scie.org.uk/care-act-2014/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-boards-checklist-and-resources/annual-reports.asp
http://www.scie.org.uk/care-act-2014/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-boards-checklist-and-resources/strategic-plans/index.asp
http://www.scie.org.uk/care-act-2014/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-boards-checklist-and-resources/annual-reports.asp


1.3 The overarching purpose of a SAB is to help and safeguard adults with care 
and support needs. It does this by: 

 assuring itself that local safeguarding arrangements are in place as 
defined by the Care Act 2014 and statutory guidance;

 assuring itself that safeguarding practice is person-centred and outcome-
focused;

 working collaboratively to prevent abuse and neglect where possible.
 ensuring agencies and individuals give timely and proportionate responses 

when abuse or neglect have occurred;
 assuring itself that safeguarding practice is continuously improving and 

enhancing the quality of life of adults in its area.

1.4 The SAB must provide strategic leadership for adult safeguarding 
arrangements across its locality and oversee and coordinate the effectiveness 
of the safeguarding work of its member and partner agencies, underpinned 
by the six key principles outlined in the Care Act Guidance: 

 Empowerment
 Prevention
 Proportionality 
 Protection 
 Partnership  
 Accountability 

This also requires the SAB to develop and actively promote a culture with its 
members, partners and the local community that recognises the values and 
principles contained in ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’.  

The SAB should also concern itself with a range of issues which can 
contribute to the wellbeing of its community and the prevention of abuse and 
neglect, such as: 

 the safety of people who use services in local health settings, including 
mental health;

 the safety of adults with care and support needs living in social housing;
 effective interventions with adults who self-neglect, for whatever reason;
 the quality of local care and support services;
 the effectiveness of prisons in safeguarding offenders;
 enhancing partnership working between adult safeguarding and domestic 

abuse.

1.5 To report on West Sussex SAB’s response to its statutory requirements, the 
Board has produced an annual report for the year 2017/18 which 
summarises the vision, principles and work achieved by the Board. 

2. Proposal

2.1 It is proposed that the Independent Chair of the WSSAB along with West     
Sussex County Council’s Head of Safeguarding, provide the annual update to 
the Committee in respect of the strategic plan, action taken and annual 
report for 2017/18.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/5854661/Making+Safeguarding+Personal+-+Guide+2014/4213d016-2732-40d4-bbc0-d0d8639ef0df


3. Resources 

3.1 The funding of the WSSAB mirrors that of the West Sussex Safeguarding 
Children Board and is funded by key agencies including health, police and, 
district and borough councils. Given the County Council has lead 
responsibility for safeguarding, it provides the largest contribution.

Factors taken into account

4. Issues for consideration by the Select Committee 

4.1    The Committee is invited to consider the WSSAB Annual Report 2017/18 
including the key areas of focus as detailed in the report and, whether 
sufficient action is being taken to ensure that adults in West Sussex are 
being protected from abuse and neglect.

5. Consultation

5.1 The work undertaken by the WSSAB is based upon full multi-agency 
engagement. This includes representation from voluntary groups and 
independent sector providers. There has also been improved engagement 
with the community via a WSSAB sub-group focusing on engagement. It is 
recognised that further work is required for fuller engagement with service 
users.

6. Risk Management Implications

6.1 In terms of political, reputational, legal and financial risks which may occur, 
the risk in relation to the on-going scrutiny of the WSSAB lies in reputational 
risk to the Council if this is not adopted. As the lead agency for safeguarding, 
there is a need for Members to provide scrutiny and to understand how 
effectively West Sussex residents are protected.

7. Other Options Considered

7.1 The Council is committed to safeguarding adults within its community.  The 
only alternative to this proposal would be for the Committee to be unsighted 
on the activity of the WSSAB.  However, this would consequently present the 
risk that the Council would fail to meet its responsibilities as lead agency for 
safeguarding adults and elected members would not meet their corporate 
responsibility to prevent and report abuse.

8. Equality Duty

8.1 An Equality Impact Report is not required for this report, as no actions 
identified within the report impact on groups with protected characteristics.  

9. Social Value

9.1 Central to this approach is building resilience and social capital that can 
contribute towards stronger and effective communities.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



10. Crime and Disorder Implications

10.1 Not applicable.

11. Human Rights Implications

11.1 The 2014 Care Act introduces new legislation governing social care but there 
is still a need for specialist and on-going training to keep the legal literacy of 
practitioners, current. Local authorities must also ensure they support 

         workers to utilise the less restrictive options and, comply with both the 
         1998 Human Rights Act and the 2005 Mental Capacity Act.

11.2 The Care Act requires practice in accordance with Making Safeguarding 
Personal. It follows the edict of ‘no decision about me without me’ and means 
that the adult, their family and carers are working together with agencies to 
find the right solutions to keep people safe and support them in making 
informed choices. 

11.3 The Care Act introduces a duty on local authorities to consider whether it 
should provide an advocate for a person where an assessment, review, or 
safeguarding enquiry for a person is being undertaken, if that person would 
have significant difficulty in representing themselves in this process and has 
no-one else who could represent them. The local authority must have enough 
capacity to provide an advocate to individuals in these circumstances, in 
addition to ensuring there is sufficient capacity to provide for an 
Independent Mental Capacity Advocate if they are subject to the Mental 
Capacity Act or, an Independent Mental Health Advocate if they are subject 
to the 2007 Mental Health Act.

Annie Callanan Julie Phillips
Independent Chair  Head of Safeguarding

Contact: Ru Gunawardana (Board Manager):  ru.gunawardana@westsussex.gov.uk

Appendices West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017-18

Background Papers None

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Page 0 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 
 

  

Page 27

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 1 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

West Sussex 

Safeguarding Adults Board 
 

Annual Report 2017-2018 

 
  

 
  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 2 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

Contents 
 

Foreword from the Chair     4-5 
 

About West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board 6 

 

Our Aims        7 

 

Our Vision        8 

 

Our Achievements      9 

 

What our Sub-groups did     10 

 

The Story of David      12 

 

Board Partners       13 

 

Our Data        17 
 

 West Sussex Statistics     18 

Care Settings, Workforce and Services  19 

Safeguarding Concerns    20 

Types of Alleged Abuse    20 

Demographics - Gender    21 

Demographics - Age     21 

Location of Abuse     22 

Case Outcomes      23 

Deprivation of Liberty of Safeguards  24 

 

Safeguarding Adults Board Learning   25 
 

 What did we learn?     25 

 Multi-agency safeguarding Audits   26 

What did we learn?     26 

Our Priorities      27 

Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR)   27 

SAR Summary for Adult E    28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 3 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

 

Board Governance      29 

 

Our Board Membership     30 

  

Contact Points       31 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 4 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Foreword from the Independent Chair 

Annie Callanan 
 

I have been the Independent Chair of the West Sussex 

Safeguarding Adult Board (SAB) since end of 

December 2017 and am pleased to introduce the 

Annual Report 2017 – 18. I am a qualified social worker 

and have operated in senior positions in Social Care 

and in Health at local and national level. I am, along 

with all agencies and partners, aware of the pressure 

on local services and the commitment of services to 

preventing abuse and responding effectively to adults 

who are at risk. 

 

As a SAB, we constructively challenge and support 

each other and are working as partners to make real 

improvement across all services. 

 

We held a Development Day in May 2018 facilitated by 

Professor Michael Preston Shoot, when we reviewed the structure to ensure it remains fit for 

purpose; set 2018/2019 priorities and reviewed our commitment to working in partnership. 

Building on achievements to date, we will focus on: 

 

 Improving Governance and reviewing Membership of the SAB, ensuring all agencies 

are represented at a level that supports informed discussion and ensures decision 

are made and agreed at SAB Meetings;  

 

 Write a Constitution for the SAB that identifies all agency responsibilities and the 

relationship between the SAB and other Boards across agencies in the County of 

West Sussex;  

 

 Write Terms of Reference for the Board; the Sub Groups of the Board and ensure, 

through production of a Members Handbook, that all SAB and Sub Group Members 

are aware of their roles;  

 

 Establish clear systems for identification of Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) of 

serious cases involving serious injury or death, to ensure lessons are learnt and 

services improved;  

 

 Establish a strong and coherent cross agency Quality Assurance Dashboard so that 

the SAB is assured about the safety of services across all partners, and aware of 

action to reduce identified risk as well as produce a Risk Register so that we are 

aware of risk in services; 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 5 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 Make sure Training and Development proactively identifies how services are 

improving and can demonstrate how services are better for those who use them 

and their families and or friends/carers; 

 

 Improve communication, between the SAB and other statutory bodies, such as the 

Safeguarding Children’s Board and the Health and Well-Being Board, and partner 

agencies, so that we can constructively challenge and support improvement of 

services for those who use them and their families, carers and friends, and we 

reduce duplication. 

 

As we move further towards continuous improvement of services to implement the Care 

Act 2014, we will need to review the capacity of the Safeguarding Adults Team to ensure 

we have the right skills and expertise to support the work of West Sussex Safeguarding 

Adults Board going forward.  

 

We will, in the next year, appoint a Vice Chair for the Board and continue to make sure we 

communicate more effectively with those who use services and their carers, families and 

support networks, residents, professionals, partners and agencies through various ways to 

make sure that in all we do, we remain focused on improvement, year on year.  

 

I look forward to working proactively with colleagues and all partners in West Sussex in this 

coming year. 

 

 

Annie Callanan 

Independent Chair  

West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board 

 

  

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 6 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

About West Sussex Safeguarding Adults 
Board 

 

What is a Safeguarding Adults Board? 
 

West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) was established in its current form in 2011. It 

comprises of senior strategic leaders from a number of organisations which provide services in 

West Sussex and is led by Annie Callanan, our Independent Chair. From 1 April 2015 the Board 

became a statutory body with specific duties and functions. These requirements are set out in 

the Care Act 2014. 
 

The Board leads the strategic oversight of adult safeguarding arrangements in West Sussex for 

adults with care and support needs that are at risk of abuse or neglect.  
 

The Board does this by: 
 

 
 

How we work 
 

The Board has a core membership of statutory organisations, including West Sussex County 

Council (WSCC), the three Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Sussex Police.  There 

are a number of other partners who also form a part of the Board. The Board meets four times 

a year with most of its business delivered through its sub-groups. 

Improving the way 

partner agencies and 

services work 

together to respond 

when abuse or 

neglect has occurred 

and to prevent abuse 

and neglect from 

happening 
 

Having a 

strategic 

plan to 

ensure   we 

deliver on 

our 

objectives 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 7 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Our Aims 
 
 
 

 

 

  

Annual Report  

Reflects on the previous year’s activity and reports progress towards the 
Strategic and Annual Business Plans 

Annual Business Plan  

Provides a detailed plan of specific key actions, and target timescales required 
to achieve the Board’s Strategic Plan 

Strategic Aims  

Establishes strategic aims and 3 year objectives  

required to achieve the Board’s vision  

Board’s Aims  

Sets the overall vision of the Board and the outcomes it wants to achieve  

for the citizens of West Sussex 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 8 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Our Vision 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Our vision  

For people in West Sussex to 
live in safety, free from abuse 

and the fear of abuse 
 

Prevent abuse and 
neglect from happening 

Identify, report and 
remove the risk of 
abuse and neglect 

Place the person 
and their voice at 
the centre at all 

times 

Improve community 
awareness Share information and 

intelligence 

Learn from 
safeguarding cases to 

improve practice 

Reasure our 
communities 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 9 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Our Achievements 
 

  

 Strategic leadership of the safeguarding agenda in its 

widest sense; 
 

 Implementation of a Chair’s sub-group to oversee Board 

work; 
 

 Improvement of safeguarding knowledge via 

safeguarding training across the partnership; 
 

 Launch of training standards to care providers in private, 

voluntary and independent sectors; 
 

 Challenge events across agencies to improve 

safeguarding practice; 
 

 Improving reporting on effectiveness of safeguarding 

practice through the implementation of monthly audits; 
 

 Benchmarking of the Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) 

performance against other SABs; 
 

 Enhanced engagement and learning through the 

development of a customer feedback form, safeguarding 

leaflets and events to share learning; 
 

 Developed safeguarding partnership working with West 

Sussex Fire and Rescue Service; 
 

 Reviewed referral routes for raising safeguarding concerns 

to enable alignment and timely responses across the 

partnership; 
  

 Raised awareness of safeguarding locally through media, 

training and roadshows. 

 

  

 

We are pleased to report that in addition to our priorities being met, we have surpassed 

our expectations of the variety of initiatives progressed this year to improve practice and 

safety across the partnership. 
 

Details of how our priorities have been met and the diverse safeguarding initiatives 

implemented are covered in the following sections of this report: 
  

 What our sub-groups did in 2017-18 

 How our Board Partners are making a difference 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 10 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 What our sub-groups did in 2017-18 
 
 

 

The Chair’s sub-group  

The key role of this group was to ensure the sub-groups worked collaboratively and 

reduced duplication as well as to identify ways of reducing demand on partner 

agencies by working closely with neighbouring Safeguarding Adult Boards (SABs). 

Our Independent Chair, Annie Callanan was able to meet with the Chair’s sub-

group in March 2018, to review key areas of work and allocate appropriate 

resources to the sub-groups. 

Next year, the Chair’s sub-group will have overall responsibility for informing the 

agenda of the SAB, sharing local risks, issues and safeguarding activity as well as 

identifying emerging trends comparative to national levels. 

 

Quality and Performance sub-group 
 

The purpose of this group is to effectively monitor, report and evaluate 

safeguarding evidence across organisations. 
 

Achievements: 
 

 An Annual Assurance document was developed in partnership with East 

Sussex and Brighton and Hove Safeguarding Adults Boards (SABs) to give 

agencies an opportunity to evidence how they have been promoting 

safeguarding.   

 

 Challenge Events took place to identify and share good practice across 

agencies; the findings of which were taken forward at strategic levels. 

 

 Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) were ‘tested’ by using multi-agency 

audits of work to ensure recommendations were actioned. See page 26 

for further information. 

 

 Benchmarking against other SABs around key information from statutory 

partners including: the number of concerns raised, preventative work 

undertaken by the Fire and Rescue Service and, referrals from Sussex 

Police and South East Coast Ambulance Service. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 11 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Engagement sub-group  

 

The purpose of this group was to raise safeguarding awareness by engaging with 

organisations across communities and to develop publications. 

 

 Safeguarding Week: In collaborations with West Sussex Children Board and 

Community Safety team, a week of events in November 2017 was 

facilitated across a range of agencies in order to raise awareness.  Given 

the success of the event, it will be replicated next year. 

 

 Elimination of Female Genital Mutilation Day: A learning workshop for 

community groups and agencies was run to mark Elimination of Female 

Genital Mutilation (FGM) Day in February 2018. 

 

 Safeguarding Feedback: Production of a feedback form for safeguarding 

service users who are supported by West Sussex County Council. 

 

 Safeguarding Leaflet: Production of a safeguarding leaflet to be used 

across Sussex. 

 

Training sub-group 

 

 The Training sub-group held four roadshows for care providers in private, 

voluntary and independent sectors in West Sussex. Training standards 

developed by the sub-group were shared with over 300 people who 

attended. 
 

 To ensure safeguarding knowledge is developed and embedded in 

practice, staff across the partners including private, voluntary and 

independent sectors have attended a range of courses from basic 

awareness to specialist, investigative and management training, across all 

levels. 

 

Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) sub-group 
 

The Care Act 2014 demands that a SAR is considered when an adult at risk dies or 

suffers from serious harm and, there is an opportunity to promote multi-agency 

learning and improvement in practice.  
 

The focus of the SAR sub-group has been to progress SAR referrals to the Board.  See 

page 27. 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 12 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

  

Case Study 
 

 

David is a 44 year old man who has a long history of 

significant mental ill-health including schizophrenia and 

a history of illicit substance misuse. He lives in a one bedroom flat in town with his partner and 

maintains contact with his father and brother who both live locally. 
 

David is well known to mental health services, having accessed support from the Assertive 

Outreach Team for a number of years. He has previously been sectioned under Section 3 of 

the Mental Health Act and at the time of the concern, had a ‘Community Treatment Order,’ 

conditions of which were for him to engage with Community Mental Health services and to 

accept his Depot Medication. 
 

Whilst under section in hospital, staff raised a concern that David was being exploited by 

people who were well known to the police. The number of people visiting David’s flat at 

‘odd’ times of the day meant that the Social Landlord had no choice but to commence 

procedures to evict David from his flat, due to him breaching his tenancy conditions. 
 

Police raised concerns that David was the victim of ‘Cuckooing,’ a form of abuse where 

homes are taken over using coercion or force. It is understood that he was being targeted by 

drug dealers from out of the area in order to deal drugs from David’s flat. 
 

In line with Making Safeguarding Personal, when asked what he wanted to achieve, David 

conveyed that he wanted help to maintain his tenancy and to feel safe in his home. 
 

The Police and Housing Departments worked closely with colleagues from local charities to 

put a Court Order in place which prevented anyone, other than professionals, entering his 

flat for a three month period. This was monitored by the police and anyone breaking this was 

at risk of a significant fine or prison sentence. The aim here was to break the cycle of the drug 

dealing and concurrent anti-social behaviour. 
 

Further actions were identified as part of the safeguarding enquiry, which included the 

provision of a small support package to help David maintain his tenancy and the installation 

of a video intercom and alarm system so David was aware who he was letting into his flat. As 

a result, David felt that he could feel safe in his home. It was made clear to David that in 

order for the Housing Association not to take further action in relation to his tenancy, he 

needed to ensure that there were no further incidences of anti-social behaviour or of people 

using his flat. 
 

David has since continued to work well with local professionals and agencies, including 

Housing Officers and has had his medication changed; he now feels safe in his home. The 

police continue to visit his flat on a regular basis as part of their assessment of risk of people 

who may be ‘vulnerable to cuckooing.’ David currently presents as having mental capacity 

in relation to decisions about his flat and housing and continues to live independently. 
 

This case was reviewed as part of our Multi-Agency audit and was found to be ‘Good’, due 

to the level of engagement and multi-agency involvement in place to support David, 

consideration of wider risks to others, strong making safeguarding personal practice and the 

positive outcome for David. 

  

The Story of 

David 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 13 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

How board partners are  

making a difference 
 

Board members have progressed numerous initiatives to improve efficiency, effectiveness 

and practice in safeguarding over the past year. 

 

 

  

West Sussex County Council - Adult Services 
  

 timely responses to concerns by changing the pathway and also, 

developing a quality pathway to prevent issues being mistakenly 

processed via safeguarding 

 all referrals from the Police are now triaged daily 

 checking on the quality of practice through monthly safeguarding audits 

 a targeted action plan improving timelines of enquiries by mental health 

teams  

 

Sussex Police 
 

 improved identification of stalking by training Officers  

 provided force-wide domestic abuse training, with Safe Lives, to around 

2500 staff 

 implemented Operation Cuckoo in response to drug dealers targeting 

vulnerable adults to take control of their homes to deal drugs    

 specialist Prevention officers worked with communities to identify and 

tackle arising issues and provided support to vulnerable people via the 

introduction a Prevention Model 

 reviewed and updated their adult Safeguarding policy 

 developed Operation Rattle providing the framework for the Force’s 

multi-agency response to Violence, Vulnerability and Exploitation 

  

 

West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Groups (WSCCGs) 

 

 delivered sessions on West Sussex County Council’s Safeguarding ‘best 

practice’ events and on the SAB ‘Safeguarding Together’ events   

 continued to provide support for safeguarding enquiries in care homes 

via Safeguarding Adults Nurse Specialists 

 monitored and supported GP involvement within SARs 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 14 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service (WSFRS) 
 

 provided tailored services to households by making 6647 ‘All Safe and 

Well visits’ and 4959 ‘High risk and safe and well visits’  

 completed 50 joint visits with professionals to contribute to care planning  

 implemented learning from a fatal fire SAR to improve referrals and the 

sharing of information with partners 

 enhanced internal communication and learning from safeguarding 

cases 

 

Western Sussex Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (WSHFT) 
 

 shared learning from complaints, inquests, legal claims, clinical incidents, 

non-clinical patient incidents and safeguarding reviews via the 

implementation of a Triangulation committee 

 developed a Prevent policy and delivered targeted Prevent WRAP 

training 

 completed a self-assessment 

 launched a safeguarding adults’ concern form and NHS Safeguarding 

App 

 hosted the ‘Championing Safeguarding Together’ event in July 2017 to 

develop making safeguarding personal for the Trust and care home 

providers 

 

 

Sussex Community Foundation Trust (SCFT) 
 

 developed ability to report safeguarding and categories of abuse via an 

online incident reporting system directly to the Local Authority 

 supported joint working with Coastal CCG who has been coordinating 

the Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) health action 

 participated in reviewing all SAR actions for community services and 

provided assurance of service delivery 

 

Sussex Partnership Foundation NHS Trust (SPFT) 
 

 improved practice through training and support to staff on safeguarding 

and via a new Safeguarding Adults Liaison Practitioner post 

 established a new Trust Adults and Children safeguarding team 

 shared learning with staff following the scrutinising of Incident reports 

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 15 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

District and Borough Councils 
 

Cross council partnership exists to prioritise and target safeguarding 

issues across the county. Our Districts and Boroughs have also progressed 

numerous actions to improve safeguarding including the following: 

 

 designated Safeguarding Officer meetings to consider referrals and 

share learning 

 safeguarding training for all volunteers, Dementia Friends and staff 

members 

 created more rigorous local knowledge tests for prospective taxi drivers 

to ensure they are aware of adults at risk and the importance of 

safeguarding 

 questions on safeguarding are now included in licensing requirements for 

Taxi Drivers  

 training provided for taxi drivers on safeguarding and exploitation 

 monthly street community meetings working with those at risk of being 

street homeless and/or having a negative impact on the community  

 developed, with partners, a user-design approach for homelessness 

prevention 

 promoted learning through a multi-agency Safeguarding Awareness 

Day for staff 

 staff support provided via designated safeguarding officers 

 

 

 

Healthwatch West Sussex 
 

Healthwatch West Sussex is an independent organisation that collects 

and analyses the experiences of people in West Sussex of local care to 

help shape local services.  Local Healthwatch also signposts people to 

local health and social care services.  

 

Over the past year, Healthwatch has been working with West Sussex 

County Council to develop a public feedback loop/evaluation 

mechanism for adults involved in safeguarding processes.  

Healthwatch’s focus next year will be to pursue this agreement. 

 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 16 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community Rehabilitation Company 
 

Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community Rehabilitation Company launched a 

Women’s Strategy given women’s higher likelihood of both sentencing 

for non-violent crimes and being victims of domestic abuse. The 

Safeguarding Lead is also raising awareness, identifying areas for support 

and swift interventions to manage concerns. 

 

 

West Sussex Partners in Care  
 

West Sussex Partners in Care facilitated ‘Safeguarding Together’ events 

through a ‘person-centred safeguarding’ training programme. 

 

 
Independent Lives 

 

Independent Lives has developed a quick reporting system for support 

workers in the community whereby concerns regarding an individual’s 

safety or mental capacity can be raised at the time of visit.  

 

 
Surrey and Sussex NHS Healthcare Trust 

 

Surrey and Sussex NHS Healthcare Trust has had monthly meetings, run 

by senior nurses of the Emergency Department to review patients’ notes 

in order to ensure appropriate safeguarding referrals were being made. 

 

 

National Probation Services 
 

National Probation Services have provided support, guidance and 

advocacy in relation to health, housing and other key areas where 

restricted access to services can impact on well-being and increase 

vulnerability.  

 

 

Aspire Sussex 
 

Aspire Sussex has continued to train all members of staff, including tutors, 

who are mostly likely to experience initial safeguarding disclosures. 

 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 17 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

Our data 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 18 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

WEST SUSSEX STATISTICS1 
 
 

In 2019 it is estimated that 864,653 people live in West Sussex. 

This is predicted to increase to 997,684 by 2039 
 
 

It is estimated that 201,547 people will be over 65 in 2019 
 
 

In West Sussex 84,393 people provide unpaid care.   

This is about 1 in 10 people in West Sussex2 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Almost 20 per cent of the above unpaid family and friend carers3 

provide over 50 hours a week of care4 
 

 

It is estimated that 3,160 people have a moderate or 

severe learning disability in West Sussex 
 
 

1,990 people with a learning disability are provided with a social care 
 

  

                                                           
1
 The statistics for this chapter are taken from a variety of sources, including:  West Sussex Life 2017-19; NICHE (Police 

database); West Sussex Fire and Rescue; Performance and Insight Teams from both Sussex Police and West Sussex County 
Council; Hospital Episode Statistics (HES), Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) and Skills for Care. 
2 West Sussex Life 2017-19. 
3
 An unpaid family or friend carer is a person who gives any help or support to their friend or family member who are, for 

example, living with a person with a life-limiting condition, a disability, a terminal condition or issues related to old age.  
Family and friend carers are critical to people in their care. 
4 West Sussex Life 2017-19. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 19 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Care settings5, workforce and services 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   There are 92 GP practices in West Sussex6.     .         
 
 
 
 
 

  

                                                           
5 West Sussex Life 2017-19. 
6 Figure accumulated from: http://www.nhs.uk/Services.  

9058 people live in medical or care establishments 

in West Sussex.  
 

4494 people live in residential and nursing care 

settings.  
 

122 supported living accommodation based services 

for people with learning disabilities. 
 

9 extra care housing services. 
 

100+ daycare organisations and groups providing 

day activities for older people. 
 

There are 105 specialist services for people with 

physical and/or learning disabilities. 
 

 

 

The majority (79%) of the 

workforce in West Sussex were 

female and the average age was 

43 years old.    

 
 
 

In 2016/17 there were an estimated 

24,500 jobs in adult social care in West 

Sussex,  

(5.7%) local authorities, 

(87.6%) independent sector providers,  

(6.8%) direct payment recipients. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix

http://www.nhs.uk/Services


 

 

Page 20 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Safeguarding Concerns 
 

 

6751 safeguarding concerns were 

raised. This is the highest number 

received in West Sussex and a 23.5% 

increase in the number of safeguarding 

Concerns raised compared to the 

previous financial year. 
 

From the 6751 concerns, 2449 enquiries 

ensued of which, 2021 enquiries were 

concluded by the year end.  

 

Figure 1: Safeguarding concerns versus safeguarding enquiries 

Increased levels of concerns and enquiries could indicate an improving awareness of 

safeguarding from website, publications and media. 

 

Type of alleged abuse 
 

Neglect and Acts of Omission, with 969 cases (47.7%), and physical abuse, with 529 cases 

(26%), were the most highly reported allegations of abuse.  These types of abuse represent 

over 70% of all safeguarding enquiries and account for the majority of abuse enquiries over 

the past 3 years. 
   

West Sussex evidences a higher proportion of Neglect and Acts of Omission compared to 

National data, which identifies it as the most common type of risk in enquiries concluded in 

the year accounting for 32.1% of risks.  
 

Type of abuse 2017/18 

Physical abuse 529 (26%) 

Sexual abuse 90 (4.4%) 

Psychological abuse 118 (5.81%) 

Financial or material abuse 218 (10.7%) 

Discriminatory abuse 9 (0.44%) 

Organisational abuse 21 (1.03%) 

Neglect and acts of omission  969 (47.7%) 

Domestic abuse 46 (2.3%)  

Sexual exploitation 0 (0%)  

Modern slavery 0 (0%)  

Self-neglect 31 (1.53%)  

TOTAL 2031  

Figure 2: Nature of alleged abuse for safeguarding enquiries 
 

*The total number of types of abuse recorded is higher than the completed enquiries figure 

given as more than one type of abuse can be recorded for each enquiry. 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

3388 

5164 

6751 

1473 
1798 

2449 

Total safeguarding
concerns

Total safeguarding
enquiries

Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 21 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Demographics - Gender 
 

 

 

 

Figure 3: Individuals by gender involved in Section 42 safeguarding enquiries 2017/18. 

 

 

Demographics – Age 
 

 

 

 

Figure 4: Age of people with safeguarding referral enquiries in 2017/18. 

 

  

Female, 

63.1% 

Male, 36.8% 

Not known, 

0.2% 

The gender difference for concerns 

is similar to 2016/17 with significantly 

more women, 63.1%, being 

referred. 

 

There is a significant improvement 

in non-recording of gender from 1% 

in 2016/17 to 0.2% in 2017/18.  

 

18-64 

31% 

65-74 

11% 

75-84 

21% 

85-94 

30% 

95+ 

7% 

Nationally, older people are 

much more likely to be the 

subject of an enquiry; one in 

every 43 adults aged 85 and 

above, compared to one in 

every 862 adults aged 18-64. 

 

In West Sussex, the number of 

enquiries across age bands 

indicates that it is older adults 

who mostly required 

safeguarding enquiries; they 

account for 69% of all enquiries 

of which 37% (660 adults) are 

over 85 years old. 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 22 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Location of alleged abuse at enquiry stage 
 

There was an increase of safeguarding enquiries based in people’s homes, accounting for 

27.5% of enquiries. 

 

However, the vast majority of enquiries were in care homes which, accounted for 52.8% of all 

enquiries.  

 

This is different to national data which identifies the most common location of risk to be 

people’s homes (43.5% of enquiries). The SAB will look at identifying why these figures are 

different to the national trends and work as a partnership to implement any changes 

required. 

 

Overall, care homes, acute and mental health hospitals all had a decrease in the share of 

safeguarding enquiries.  

 

 

 
Figure 5: Location of enquiries for 2017/18. 

 

 

Own home, 

27.50% 

In the 

 community,  

4.70% 

community 

service, 4.50% 

Care home – 

Nursing, 22% 

Care home – 

Residential, 30.80% 

Hospital – Acute, 

4.30% 

Hospital – Mental 

Health, 4% 

Hospital - 

Community, 

0.60% 

Other, 1.60% 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 23 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Yes they were asked 

and outcomes were 

expressed, 83% 

Yes they were asked 

but no outcomes 

were expressed, 7% 

No, 8% Don’t know, 3% 

Not 

recorded, 

0% 

  

Case outcomes 
 

Making Safeguarding Personal demands that adults are fully involved in the safeguarding 

process and are asked what outcomes they want to achieve. Further work is needed to 

develop measurable outcomes to understand what adults are looking to achieve. 

 

90% of adults were asked what outcomes they wanted to achieve of which 83% expressed 

their views.  Of this 83%, 65% had their outcomes fully achieved, 31% partially achieved and 

4% not achieved. 

 

 

Figure 6: Percentage of Adults asked of what outcomes they wanted to achieve.  

 

Figure 7: Percentage of adults having their outcomes achieved. 

  

Fully Achieved, 

65% 

Partially Achieved, 

31% 

Not Achieved, 4% 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 24 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Information 
 

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS), is an amendment to the Mental Capacity Act 

2005, which allows restraint and restrictions that amount to a deprivation of liberty to be used 

in hospitals and care homes if they are in a person’s best interests. To deprive a person of their 

liberty, care homes and hospitals must request standard authorisations from a local authority. 

 

During the 2017-18 reporting year, 3,745 requests were received, which is a 6% increase from 

last year.   

 

There were a total of 3,390 completed applications* and a total of 3,470 outstanding cases* 

that were not completed in 2017-18.  

 

*Please note that these cases are not necessarily the same cohort as the 3,745 requests received in the 

2017-2018 year; these cases may have been received prior to 2017-2018. 

 

Comparative data 
 

At the end of 2017-18 there were 3,470 cases not completed.  

 

Nationally, West Sussex receive a lower than average number of DoLS Applications per year 

but are recognised as an outlier for the number of applications outstanding (not yet 

completed) and the length of time it takes to complete outstanding cases. 

 

This is a concern for the SAB who will monitor the process next year. 

 

Figure 8: Number of received and completed applications by month across 2016-17 and 

2017-18  

Page 51

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 25 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

SAB Learning and  

Learning from Safeguarding Adults 

Reviews 
 

The Safeguarding Adults Board has the responsibility to ensure that all agencies working with 

Adults in West Sussex continue to learn and develop the best Safeguarding Practice. We do 

this by reflecting on practice through audits, and Best Practice events/conferences with staff. 

 

This year the Safeguarding Adults Board held two ‘Challenge and Support events’; one in 

partnership with East Sussex and Brighton and Hove Safeguarding Adults Boards for partners 

working across all three of those localities, and one for partners working solely within West 

Sussex. 

What did we learn? 

• NHS providers have good and clear levels of training and professional development for 

all their staff, and there are opportunities that this can be shared with other agencies. 

• The introduction of the Care Certificate could give the Safeguarding Adults Board 

opportunity to develop a framework for providers of care and support. This was shared 

with providers as part of our Safeguarding Adults Board roadshows. 

• Agencies are facing challenge in relation to finance and resources. This is not just in 

West Sussex but is a national issue. We are hoping to help our agencies work in smarter 

ways to reduce the impact of this reduction in funding on safeguarding. This can be 

done by working collaboratively with our partnering Boards in East Sussex and Brighton 

and Hove. 

• A continued focus required on the Mental Capacity Act in terms of understanding and 

implementation, with the need for some agencies to develop a communications plan 

to support and embed staffs’ understanding and resources available.  

• Making Safeguarding Personal is not always being captured and recorded in a way 

that is meaningful for the person or the organisation. The Safeguarding Adults Board 

will look at national assessment tools and systems being used and see how we can 

apply this closely within West Sussex. 

• Opportunities were identified to share and adopt tried and tested methods of 

auditing; the extent to which the Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) approaches are 

embedded in practice. The Safeguarding Adults Board will plan to test this as part of a 

Multi-Agency Audit theme in 2018-19. 

 

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 26 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Audits 
 

The SAB undertook a large multi-agency audit, looking at how people who used substances 

were supported during safeguarding events that impacted on their day-to-day lives. 

31 Cases were provided by partners including Sussex Police; Worthing Churches Homeless 

Project; Change, Grow, Live; West Sussex County Council and Sussex Partnership Foundation 

NHS Trust. Areas of focus for this audit included cuckooing and modern slavery as well as 

rough sleeping and domestic abuse. 

Quality standards and thresholds were applied to these cases to measure how people had 

been listened to, how they had been supported to identify outcomes to make themselves 

safer, and how these outcomes had then been applied to remove or reduce the level of risk 

in that safeguarding concern. 

 

What did we learn? 

• Cuckooing is being widely considered by front-line workers across a variety of 

agencies – this is a highly complex area due to several factors including scale of 

criminal activity involved, rapid fluctuations in capacity and identifying whether 

someone is being cuckooed, or if they are facilitating the criminal activity for their own 

benefit. 

• In cases where agencies were working well together there was a clear evidence trail 

of communication and professional curiosity in terms of safeguarding especially where 

the person at the centre of the concern was reluctant to engage. 

• Agencies need to ensure they have a clear understanding of the terminology ‘Care 

and Support Needs’ in relation to the Care Act 2014. 

• Individuals identified as ‘rough sleepers’ had frequently experienced their 

safeguarding concern being closed, due to ‘not being able to contact’ the adult. 

Front line agencies may hold information as to the whereabouts of these individuals to 

help progress cases. This has now been included as part of initial information-gathering 

parts of a safeguarding concern. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 27 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Our Priorities for 2018-2019 
 

As a Board we will continue to work together to deliver on our vision to keep people in West 

Sussex safe from abuse and neglect.  

Our priorities for the next year are detailed by our Chair, Annie Callanan, in the foreword, at 

the beginning of this report. 

 
 

Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) 
 

A SAR is a legal duty under the Care Act 2014. The purpose of the review is to learn from 

cases to prevent similar incidents occurring.  The aim is not to apportion blame on an 

organisation or individuals for any failings that may be discovered. 

During 2017-18, West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board (WSSAB) worked closely with 

neighbouring Boards to ensure that we applied the threshold for SARs consistently.  

WSSAB SAR sub-group received nine referrals in 2017-18. Of these, two met the threshold for a 

SAR (Adult G and Adult H) and one case was completed as a Learning Review (Adult J).  

Adult F (referred in 2016-17), and Adults C and D (referred in 2015-16) are yet to be finalised 

and a summary will be detailed in the next year’s annual report 2018-19. 

Adult Bea (referred in 2015-16) is awaiting publication due to parallel process. 

 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 28 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

SAR Summary for Adult E 
 

West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board published a SAR for ‘Adult E’ on the 6 February 2018. 

This SAR was referred to the SAR sub-group in 2016/17. Adult E was an independent woman in 

her late 70s who lived alone, with no known relatives.  Neighbours alerted police when they 

had not seen her for some time. As a result, police attended and were concerned to find that 

Adult E may have had a stroke.  

Police contacted paramedics who, on arrival, recommended Adult E should go to hospital 

but Adult E declined this. Instead, she accepted an alternative suggestion by paramedics to 

see her GP. 

The GP also advised Adult E to go to hospital but again, she declined to do this. The GP then 

made a referral to the Proactive Care Team. 

A number of days later, neighbours once again contacted the police concerned about Adult 

E’s wellbeing. When Police attended, they found Adult E on the floor in a poor state. She was 

taken to hospital by ambulance, but unfortunately passed away.  

The review found that a range of agencies and individuals had made attempts to provide 

Adult E with support but she had declined these offers. Her ability to make decisions (i.e. her 

mental capacity) was assumed through every interaction. 

What did we learn? 

• Professionals are faced with challenging decisions when an adult has mental capacity 

and has chosen to make a single or a series of “unwise decisions”. If an adult at risk has 

mental capacity and is reluctant or refuses to accept support, they have the right to 

decline.  

• Identifying and recording factors that may contribute to a person’s vulnerability can be 

an important step to ensuring that the person receives the necessary support or that 

reasons for refusal are noted. Where an adult refuses support, this should be respected 

but an accurate and chronological record of the support offered and reasons for the 

adult’s refusal should be recorded. These decisions should be kept under review and 

ongoing support offered where possible. 

• West Sussex County Council needed to develop proportionate feedback to originating 

agencies of the receipt and progress of referrals, with particular regard to safeguarding 

concerns. The person or organisation that raised the safeguarding concern should 

always be informed by the local authority that it has been received and where 

appropriate how the concern is being progressed. 

Published reports can be found on the Safeguarding Adults Board website here 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6
Appendix

http://www.westsussexsab.org.uk/publications/safeguarding-adult-reviews-2/


 

 

Page 29 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Board Governance structure 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: Board Governance structure 

 

 

  

Health and Wellbeing 

Board 

SAR Reviews 
subgroup 

West Sussex Safeguarding 

Adults Board 

Links to other Boards: 
 

 West Sussex Children 

Board 

 National Network for 

Chairs of SABs 

 Pan Sussex Boards 

 Pan Sussex Modern 

Slavery Network 

 Pan Sussex Honour 

Based Abuse Network 

 

Training 

subgroup 

 

Chairs  

sub-group 

 

Quality and 

Performance 
Subgroup 

Engagement 

subgroup 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 30 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

Our Board Membership 
 

 

 

Independent Chair 

Senior Adviser, West Sussex County Council WSCC  

Executive Director, WSCC 

Principal Manager Adults Safeguarding, WSCC 

Cabinet Member, WSCC 

Director of Adult Operations (DASS), WSCC 

Principal Manager – Community Safety & Wellbeing WSCC 

Head of Safeguarding  WSCC 

Head of Quality and Nursing,  Coastal WS Clinical Commissioning Group 

Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults,  Coastal West Sussex CCG, Crawley CCG, Horsham 

& Mid Sussex CCGs  (Chair of Safeguarding Adult Review sub-group) 

Clinical GP Lead for Safeguarding Adults, Coastal WS Clinical Commissioning Group 

Detective Superintendent, Sussex Police, Deputy DCI 

Safeguarding/H&S Manager, Aspire 

Nurse Director, Brighton & Sussex Hospitals Trust 

Carers Services Manager, Carers Support 

Chief Executive, Arun District Council, District & Borough Councils 

Intervention & Prevention Manager, Fire and Rescue WSCC 

Healthwatch (Chair of Engagement sub-group) 

Head of Residence, Safety & Equalities, HMP Ford Prison 

Head of Services, KSS CRC Ltd 

Senior Probation Officer, National Probation to March 2017 

Director of Nursing & Quality, Queen Victoria Hospital  

Chair, West Sussex Partners in Care (Chair of Training sub-group) 

Interim Chief Nurse & Director of Quality & Safety from January 2017, South East Coast 

Ambulance NHS Trust  

Supporting Community based Solutions (representing a number of voluntary organisations) 

Independent Lives deputy 

Deputy Chief Nurse, Surrey and Sussex NHS Healthcare Trust SASH 

Head of Safeguarding, Sussex Community Foundation Trust  

Executive Director of Nursing and Patient Experience, Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust  

Nursing Director/Trust Senior Lead for Safeguarding Adults, Western Sussex Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust 

Care Quality Commission 

NHS England 

 

  

Page 57

Agenda Item 6
Appendix



 

 

Page 31 | West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board | Annual Report | 2017-2018 

 

 

Contact Points 
 

Reporting a safeguarding concern 

 

If you are concerned that someone is abusing you or someone you 

know: 

 

Please contact the Police on 999 if you think the person is at 

immediate risk of harm. 

 

Otherwise please contact:  

 

 West Sussex Adults’ CarePoint on 01243 642121, or 

 email: socialcare@westsussex.gov.uk, or 

 fill in a safeguarding concern form online at 

www.westsussex.gov.uk/reportadultabuse     

 Typetalk: 018001 01243 642121 

 

Please also use the above contacts if you have queries regarding the 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS). 

 

 

Safeguarding training 

 

If you would like to access the Council’s safeguarding training 

programme or would like more information on safeguarding training in 

general, please visit: 

www.westsussexcpd.co.uk 

 

 

Questions about this report 

 

If you would like to find out more about this report or the work of the 

SAB please e-mail safeguardingadultsboard@westsussex.gov.uk  

 

Electronic copies of our Annual Report are available at 

www.westsussexsab.org.uk  

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6
Appendix

http://www.westsussex.gov.uk/reportadultabuse
http://www.westsussexcpd.co.uk/
mailto:safeguardingadultsboard@westsussex.gov.uk
http://www.westsussexsab.org.uk/


Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee

16 January 2019

South East Coast Ambulance Service Update

Report from: Daren Mochrie, Chief Executive, SECAmb
Steve Emerton, Director Strategy & Development

Author: Helen Wilshaw-Roberts, Strategy & Partnerships 
Manager, SECAmb

Summary

The Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee had requested an item 
from the South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAmb), as part of its agreed 
work programme, to update the Committee on its recent Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) report; executive leadership development, including plans 
for the upcoming Chief Executive appointment; the impact of the introduction 
of the Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) and response times across the 
county in particular rural areas; the Demand and Capacity Review and resulting 
Strategic Transformation and Delivery Programme; alongside other strategic 
performance updates and local performance and development initiatives for 
West Sussex, to include an update on falls and falls response times if available.
 

Focus for scrutiny

The Committee is asked to consider the detail of the report and provide 
comment on progress made by the Trust in respect of its recent CQC 
inspection, in addition to other updates as outlined in the summary above. The 
Committee may also wish to consider whether there are any issues arising 
from the report which may require any further scrutiny.

2. Background

2.1 On 29 September 2017, the CQC published its findings following its 
inspection of the South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAmb) which 
saw an overall rating of ‘inadequate’ for the 999 service and an overall 
‘good’ for the 111 service. The Trust was recognised as good for caring 
throughout. 

2.2 Following this rating, SECAmb implemented a delivery plan with a clear 
focus on the key areas for improvement as indicated by the CQC.

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



2.3 SECAmb has also continued to recruit to its Executive Team and Board

 Steve Emerton was appointed to the role of Executive Director of 
Strategy and Business Development on 2 January 2018.

 Ed Griffin was appointed to the role of Executive Director for HR on 7 
March 2018.

 Bethan Haskins, has been appointed to the role of Executive Director of 
Nursing and Quality and started on the 1 April 2018. 

 Dr Fionna Moore, has been appointed as the Trust’s substantive 
Executive Medical Director, following an interim period of the past 14 
months.

 Following the departure of the Trust’s Chairperson, Richard Foster, 
David Astley was appointed in September 2018. The Trust also 
welcomed its new Non-Executive Director, Michael Whitehouse. 

2.4 In November 2018, the Trust announced that Chief Executive, Daren 
Mochrie, would be leaving SECAmb to take up a new role as Chief 
Executive of the North West Ambulance Service from 1 April 2018. The 
process to recruit Daren’s successor is already underway, led by Chair 
David Astley.  The first round of interviews is due to take place in January 
2019.

3 CQC Update

3.1 Following the CQC published report on 29 September 2017, the result of 
which saw the Trust placed into special measures, SECAmb has been on 
an improvement trajectory. Further unannounced visits from the CQC saw 
its formal recognition of the progress that the Trust was making, largely 
achieved through a comprehensive work programme overseen by the 
Trust’s Programme Management Office (PMO).

3.2 The Trust was inspected by CQC in July and August 2018 and the 
subsequent report published on 8 November 2018 (Appendix A shows 
key excerpts). The Trust’s rating moved from ‘inadequate’ to ‘requires 
improvement’.

3.3 Whilst the Trust is rated as ‘requires improvement’, the CQC  
acknowledged a number of areas where the Trust has made significant 
progress and again rated the care given by staff to patients as good with 
several other areas recognised as outstanding. 

3.4 Some of the key areas of feedback are:

 Staff cared for patients with compassion. All staff inspectors spoke with 
were motivated to deliver the best care possible and feedback from 
patients and those close to them was positive

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



 The Trust promoted a positive culture that supported and valued staff. 
Inspectors found an improved culture across the service since the last 
inspection. Most staff felt the culture had improved and felt able to raise 
concerns to their managers

 Medicines management was robust and effective with a marked 
improvement since the previous inspection. Inspectors found elements of 
outstanding medicine management, for example, the way the Trust 
handled controlled drugs. An external review also recognised the 
impressive turnaround in performance

 A new Well-Being Hub, which enables staff to access support in a variety 
of areas. The service was widely commended by staff during the 
inspection

 A significant improvement in the process for investigating complaints and 
the quality of the Trust’s response to complaints since the previous 
inspection

3.5 Following the publication of the report and its findings, the Trust will be 
working with its PMO on a delivery plan to continue the progress and 
improvements required. Appendix A shows the Must Do and Should Do 
areas required.

4 SSG UK Specialist Ambulance Service CQC

4.1 SSG UK Specialist Ambulance Service (South) was recently rated as 
‘Inadequate’ and placed into ‘special measures’ following two 
unannounced inspections by the CQC in August and September 2018. 

4.2 In West Sussex the proportion of total hours provided by Private 
Ambulance Providers (PAPs) is 4% and by SSG 1%, the remainder being 
provided by SECAmb staff.  

4.3 The Trust is working closely with SSG to review and include all 
recommendations in its SSG Governance and Assurance Improvement 
Plan. This is to be approved by the Executive Management Board, with 
updates to be provided and reviewed on a monthly basis.

4.4 SECAmb will continue to provide SSG with senior management support 
for six months, to manage the review process and ensure that lessons are 
learnt and applied across all PAPs.

5 Ambulance Response Programme 

5.1 Following the NHS England commissioned review of urgent and 
emergency care in 2013, it was recognised that the ambulance service 
response standards (England) had not been reviewed since the mid 
1970s.  There was a review and new standards introduced in March 2001 
where there was a move away from the Rural/Urban ORCON standards 
and Cat A, B and C prioritisation was introduced at this time.  This has 
since been superseded.

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



5.2 In 2015, NHS England commissioned Sheffield University to undertake a 
study into ambulance responses. The result of this study was the 
introduction of the Ambulance Response Programme (ARP). 

5.3 The ARP is a change to the way in which ambulance services (in England) 
receive and respond to emergency calls. On 22 November 2017, ARP 
went live at SECAmb.

5.4 A key element of ARP was the re-categorisation of 999 call priorities, 
whilst maintaining a clear focus on the clinical needs of patients and 
ensuring that the right resource is dispatched (Table 1). 

6 Trust-wide Performance

6.1 The variance in performance for SECAmb across the three counties (Kent, 
Surrey, Sussex) is minimal, however the Trust recognises that achieving 
C1, C2, C3, and C4 performance measures continues to be challenging 
(Table 2a)

6.2 C1 performance achievement for ambulance services in England during 
November was 7 minutes and 11 seconds (mean).  Five ambulance trusts 
services achieved the 7 minutes response time. SECAmb was positioned 
7th out of the 10 ambulance trusts. 

6.3 C2 performance for England during November was 21 minutes 56 seconds 
(mean), with SECAmb achieving 19 minutes 24 seconds. Only two 
ambulance trusts achieved the 18-minute performance target. SECAmb 
was positioned 5th for the mean and 3rd for the 90th percentile target. 

6.4 C3 & C4 performance (90th percentile) for SECAmb has continued to 
perform below the national average.  C3 performance nationally (England) 
was 2 hours 28 minutes, with SECAmb achieving a C3 performance of 3 
hours and 13 minutes.  C4 performance nationally (England) was 3 hours 
17 minutes, with SECAmb achieving a C4 performance of 4 hours 12 
minutes.

6.5 Since ARP implementation, SECAmb has performed close to the national 
average for C1, better than average for C2. C3 and C4 responses remain 
challenging and the Demand and Capacity Review was set to review a 
potential gap in funding and the Trust’s ability to deliver to ARP 
standards.

6.6 West Sussex performance is highlighted in section 9.

7 Demand and Capacity Review

7.1 During 2017-2019, following the identification of a gap in funding, for 
SECAmb to deliver its existing model and achieve all performance targets, 
Commissioners and SECAmb jointly commissioned (with the support of 
NHS England and NHS Improvement), Deloitte and ORH to undertake a 
review of existing and future operating models. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



7.2 The approach from Deloitte and ORH was in the form of a ‘Demand and 
Capacity’ review to understand the relationship between resources, 
performances, and finances. 

7.3 The focus of the review was on two operating models: 1) Paramedic Led 
Ambulance Model and 2) The Targeted Dispatch Model. Both identified a 
requirement to increase not only the number of front line staff, but also 
the fleet resource. 

7.4 The conclusion of this review to recommend the ‘Targeted Dispatch 
Model’, which focused on getting clinically appropriate resources to 
patients by using specialist paramedics in cars, paramedics on 
ambulances and the introduction of a lower acuity mode of ambulance to 
specifically support those patients that fall into category 3 & 4 calls.  Non-
Emergency Transport (NET) vehicles have been procured and are being 
rolled out across the Trust by March 2019. 

7.5 The NET vehicles will support the Trust to improve its response to patients 
who are not in a serious or life-threatening condition. Primarily they will 
serve patients who have been assessed by a Health Care Practitioner, 
such as a Paramedic or GP and who require non-emergency urgent 
transport to a healthcare facility. However, all NET vehicles will be 
equipped with essential life-saving equipment and will be able to attend 
as a first response to life-threatening calls. The NETs will be crewed by 
Emergency Care Support Workers, Associate Ambulance Practitioners and 
Ambulance Technicians.

7.6 Another key element of the ‘Targeted Dispatch Model’ is that it builds on 
our work with the wider system to enable and facilitate alternatives to 
conveyance to an Emergency Department. That is, increase ‘hear and 
treat’ and ‘see and treat’ or refer into jointly developed and clear care 
pathways to deliver continued benefit to patients and the system.  

7.7 Work has already begun on the delivery of this model through the 
Strategic Transformation and Delivery (STAD) Programme implementation 
with staff recruitment and fleet procurement underway. A key part of the 
delivery is that Q1 2019/20 will see C1 performance achievement on a 
sustainable basis, and the introduction of the full model for all categories 
of performance, with sustainability fully achieved by Q4 2020/21. 

8 Fleet

8.1 SECAmb has invested in a 101 new ambulances with a vehicle roll out 
programme during the next 12 months. July saw the first of 42 new 
ambulances, ‘Mercedes Sprinters’, being rolled out at a rate of 3 to 4 per 
week and will replace some of the Trust’s older vehicles by October. The 
Trust is also in the process of trialling 16 new Fiat van conversion 
ambulances across the Trust. 

8.2 In addition and to further support ARP, the Trust has invested in 30 
second-hand Fiat ambulances, operating at Non-Emergency Transport 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



(NET) vehicles which are converted to attend the lower acuity non-life 
threatening calls and will carry slightly different equipment. These 
vehicles are being introduced in a phased approach commencing mid 
December 2018: full operational roll out is expected to be complete by 
March 2019. 

8.3 During 2019/20 further investment is planned in up to a further 50 
ambulances as well as a replacement programme for the Trust’s rapid 
response cars and 4x4 vehicles.

9 West Sussex Performance

9.1 The West Sussex area comprises of three clinical commissioning groups 
(CCGs), Coastal West Sussex, Horsham & Mid Sussex and Crawley. Table 
2b illustrates the performance across those three CCG’s.

9.2 Category 1 90th performance is within target in 2 of the 3 CCGs. Category 
2 90th performance is within target across all 3 CCGs. Category 3 is 
missed in all CCGs and Category 4 90th target is hit by Crawley CCG only. 
In line with the Trust-wide performance this reflects a challenge with the 
capacity to achieve the ARP targets and this has been part of the Demand 
and Capacity Review and resulting STAD programme.

9.3 In West Sussex, there is a significant increase in staff and vehicles over 
the next 18 months with eight new NET vehicles estimated to be 
operational by March 19 across the four dispatch desk areas. This extra 
resource, alongside the protected targeted dispatch model and Paramedic 
Practitioners tasked to focus on admission avoidance initiatives, will 
support increasing our ‘see and treat’ and referrals into alternative care 
pathways and reduce the time to respond to lower acuity Category 3 & 
Category 4 incidents. 

10 West Sussex Estate and Dispatch Model

10.1 On the 29 November, the Secretary of State for Health, Matt Hancock, 
announced that SECAmb will receive more than £12m of capital funding. 
The investment is to fund two new Make Ready Centres at Medway and 
Brighton, as well as estate changes at Worthing and follows Trust bids 
submitted earlier in the year. The business case for the Worthing 
development is scheduled for review at the Trust Board in January.

10.2 West Sussex is served by SECAmb across four dispatch desk areas, 
Tangmere Worthing, Gatwick and Brighton.  Each of these desks has a 
dispatcher within the Emergency Operations Centre in Crawley 
coordinating ambulance responses within the area and due to demand-
based activity, ambulances will not always remain within their own 
dispatch desk area for the entire shift.

10.3 Shift start and finish locations are fixed and the locations of the vehicles 
during the shift will be dependent on the System Status Plan and 
incidents are assigned to the closest available and clinically appropriate 
resource as per the Targeted Dispatch model. Ambulances that are not 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



assigned to incidents, are sent to strategically chosen locations based on 
historical demand and highest probability of being closest to the next high 
acuity call.  

10.4 This is called the System Status Plan (SSP), and the standby points on 
the SSP are a mixture of ambulance, fire and police stations, roadside 
locations, or other properties chosen by SECAmb for their optimum 
location.  The SSP has been used for over 10 years to manage ambulance 
responses. 

10.5 This model has not changed as a result of the Make Ready Centre estate 
model and whilst some stations may have been closed, the geographic 
coverage of the standby points remain. The standby points are ranked in 
order of priority, which changes throughout the day depending on the 
next forecast high acuity 999 call.

10.6 The proximity of a vehicle to respond to an emergency incident is not only 
dependant on the ability to cover the SSP with ambulance hours but also 
the system activity at the time. The Trust has many variables that have 
influenced response times over the last three years, such as increased 
demand, reduced capacity and increased handover delays at hospitals. 

10.7 There is a national protocol in place for both call answering and 
responding for border areas between ambulance trusts. Both SECAmb and 
SCAS operate as party to that national agreement to support cross border 
responses.

10.8 Specific focus areas that will support improved response times, outlined 
further in this report, are the Demand and Capacity review (section 7), 
and the resulting Strategic Transformation and Delivery Programme with 
the new agreed rosters, uplift in staff and increase in vehicles across the 
Trust, and the continuing Handover Delay programme.

11 Falls Focus

11.1 The Trust has recently completed an overview of falls statistics, actions 
and plans for minimising falls & optimising outcomes for the November 
’18 board. This included initial findings from an ongoing Falls Vehicle 
being piloted in Worthing, Adur and Arun districts in partnership with 
Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust. This is a Single Response 
Vehicle crewed by a Paramedic and Occupational Therapist operating 
Monday to Friday 0800-1600. A comparison is underway of varying 
models of care across 4 pilot areas.

11.2 Key findings from the top 5 activity areas in the Trust for falls follows:-
 Careline calls make up approximately 50% of the falls activity
 The numbers of falls incidents has steadily declined over the past 

year
 See & Convey is on average 30% of all falls incidents
 Average time on scene to clear for all CCG areas is 01:10:15

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



11.3 Coastal West Sussex CCG is the area with the most Falls incident activity 
as measured from October ’17 to September ’18. The Falls Vehicle pilot, 
funded by the CCG, started 14 May 2018 for six months and is currently 
being evaluated and under governance review for service continuation.

11.4 Initial outcomes in the first five months were :-
 150 patients treated
 Average response time is 46:32 minutes compared to 1:03:39 

previously
 75% of falls calls received during this pilot were attended by the falls 

vehicle
 The average time on scene 2:02:00, significantly higher than the 

current model of care, likely due to the additional treatment and 
prevention assessments made.

11.5 A Falls model of care is to be agreed for the Trust as a result of pilot 
evaluation. 

12 Handover Delays

12.1 SECAmb is leading on a system-wide programme of work focusing on 
reducing ambulance hours lost at hospital sites due to handover delays. 
The programme is led by a Programme Director.

12.2 Some good progress has been made overall, and for the month of 
November  2018 the total ambulance hours lost >30 minute turnaround 
was 4,354 hours which is equivalent to 362, 12-hour ambulance shifts for 
the month, or 12 per day. This is a reduction when compared to the same 
period last year (5,248 hours) but remains of significant concern. Most 
hospital sites are losing fewer hours than in November last year but there 
are some significant outliers where hours lost are more compared to the 
same time last year.

12.3 A key part of the work stream has been to develop together with each 
acute hospital, a handover action plan to streamline the process of 
handover delays including best practice e.g. dedicated handover nurse 
and admin, Fit2Sit, front door streaming and direct conveyance to non 
Emergency Department destinations.  

12.4 A number of live conveyance reviews have also taken place where a 
representative from the ambulance service, hospital, primary care, 
community trust, and CCG have reviewed all decisions to convey to 
hospital with an aim to ensuring that all existing community pathways are 
maximised.

12.5 The reviews undertaken so far, have given a clear indication that 
community pathways are being maximised where they are in place. The 
results are being presented for further discussion with local system 
partners in order to explore  new community pathways, where required.

12.6 Peer reviews looking at the handover process at individual sites have also 
taken place at some hospitals, where the Chief Operating Officer from 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



another acute hospital, supported by a member of the Emergency Care 
Intensive Support Team (ECIST), visits another hospital and reviews the 
ambulance pathway through the department. The peer reviews have been 
received positively and have been a good way to share best practice 
across hospital sites.

13 Five-Year Strategy

13.1 The Trust has developed a strategic plan for the five years, 2017-22, and 
is focussed on the delivery of four strategic themes; Our People, Our 
Patients, Our Partners, and Our Enablers. We are currently refreshing our 
strategy to take account of internal and external developments since 
publication in July 2017 and this will be presented to the Trust Boards in 
the next few months.

14 Alliances

14.1 On 22 November 2018, the Trust announced that it was working to
form an alliance with West Midlands and South Western Ambulance 
Services that will see us working closely together to deliver efficiency 
savings to invest in front line services.

14.2 The alliance expects to deliver savings through initiatives such as the joint
procurement of supplies, including equipment and fuel. In addition, we will 
work collaboratively to share best practice for the benefit of patients and 
staff and will also work on improving resilience between the organisations 
for planned events and major incidents.

14.3 The work will draw upon existing benchmarking and evidence from the 
National Audit Office investigation into ambulance services, and more 
recently, the report from Lord Carter into efficiency and productivity.

14.4 It is important to stress that there are no plans to merge services or re-
structure existing operations, but the alliance will mean that the three 
Trusts can make every pound of taxpayers’ money work as efficiently as 
possible.

14.5 This is very much the start of the process and further work will follow 
overcoming months through our Board and governance framework. 
However, by forming this partnership, we will be able to bring together 
the knowledge and experience of the three Trusts to explore ways to 
reduce variation and develop new joint initiatives.

15 Winter Planning

15.1 SECAmb has a proven methodology in its approach to winter 
preparedness. This is achieved with the use of historic data and current 
activity trends, combined with ‘lessons learnt’ from prior years. 

15.2 An overarching Trust winter plan is developed, supported by a tactical 
plan, as well as local ‘Operating Unit’ (OU) plans. The local OU plans feed 
in to local system plans.

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



15.3 The SECAmb 111 winter plan covers North and West Kent as well as 
Surrey and Sussex. The Winter Plan Structure Framework in shown in 
Table 3.

15.4 During winter (November 1 to March 31), the Senior Operations 
Leadership Team (SOLT) will constantly review the level of resource 
available against predicted demand enabling the Trust to predict, monitor 
and mitigate to maintain service delivery during surges in demand or 
reduced capacity. 

15.5 In line with Trust policy, the level of annual leave is reduced to 50% of 
normal levels across the two-week Christmas/New Year period and as in 
previous years, enhanced rates or incentives are offered, as needed, to 
ensure that priority shifts are covered. 

16 Finances

16.1 At the year-end (2017/18), the Trust achieved its control total of £1.0m 
deficit, this includes the agreed Sustainability and Transformation Funding 
(STF) of £1.3m. In addition, the Trust achieved a further STF (incentive plus 
bonus) of £1.4m and a CQUIN1 risk reserve of previously held by 
commissioners of £0.8m, resulting in a reported surplus of £1.3m. 

16.2 The Trust also achieved Cost Improvements of £15.5m. This was greater 
than the target of £15.1m. 

16.3 For 2018/19, the Cost Improvement Plan (CIP) target is £11.4m.
As at October ‘18, £5.1m has been delivered to date, an increase of 
£0.1m against Plan. It is projected that the full year target will be met. 
‘CIPs’ represent increased efficiency and are never a reduction of 
resources to provide front line services.

1 Commissioning for quality and innovation (CQUIN) The CQUIN payment framework was introduced in 2009 
and makes some income conditional on demonstrating improvements in quality and innovation in specified 
areas of care.

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



Daren Mochrie Steve Emerton
Chief Executive Officer Executive Director, Strategy and 

Business Development
Lead Officer Contact: 
Helen Wilshaw-Roberts, Strategy & Partnerships Manager, SECAmb
Email : helen.wilshaw@secamb.nhs.uk

Appendices

APPENDIX A : CQC REPORT SUMMARY FINDINGS – 8 November 2018
APPENDIX B : ARP, Performance and Winter Planning

Table 1 : ARP Performance Categories
Table 2a: National ARP AQI’s November 2018
Table 2b: SECAmb Performance for November 2018 and Year To Date 
Table 3: Winter Plan Structure Framework

Background Papers - None

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



APPENDICES

APPENDIX A : CQC REPORT SUMMARY FINDINGS – 8th November 2018

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



Page 71

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B : ARP, Performance and Winter Planning

Table 1:

ARP Performance Categories

Page 72

Agenda Item 7



Table 2a: National ARP AQI’s November 2018

  

 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 7



Table 2b:

SECAmb Performance for November 2018

SECAmb Performance for November and Year to Date

Table 3:

Winter Plan Structure Framework

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



Start well, Live well, Age well

CONSULTATION DRAFT
 

W‘st Suss‘x Joint H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing Strat‘gy
2019 - 2024

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



Th‘ W‘st Suss‘x H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing Board (HWB) brings 
tog‘th‘r ‘l‘ct‘d m‘mb‘rs, s‘nior l‘ad‘rs ’rom NHS, local 
authoriti‘s, voluntary s‘ctor and oth‘r partn‘rs to work tog‘th‘r 
to: 

INTRODUCTION

Pag‘ 1

The West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board

Improv‘ th‘ 
h‘alth and 

w‘llb‘ing o’ th‘ 
r‘sid‘nts o’ 
W‘st Suss‘x

R‘duc‘ th‘  h‘alth 
in‘qualiti‘s gap by 

improving th‘ h‘alth 
and w‘llb‘ing o’ th‘ 
most disadvantag‘d

Promot‘ join‘d up 
working to ‘nsur‘ 
b‘tt‘r quality o’ 
s‘rvic‘s ’or all 

Purpose of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 
 

Th‘ strat‘gy is a tool to ‘nabl‘ th‘ HWB to s‘t out th‘ plan ’or action 
by th‘ County Council, CCGs, NHS provid‘rs, district and borough 
councils, voluntary s‘ctor and oth‘r partn‘rs to in’orm th‘ir planning, 
commissioning and provision o’ s‘rvic‘s. Th‘r‘’or‘ th‘ strat‘gy aims 
to b‘ concis‘ and purpos‘’ul rath‘r than a compr‘h‘nsiv‘ r‘vi‘w o’ 
work across th‘ h‘alth and social car‘ syst‘m. Each chapt‘r 
incorporat‘s car‘’ully s‘l‘ct‘d prioriti‘s that th‘ Board ’‘‘ls can 
hav‘ signi’icant impact to achi‘v‘ our vision.
 
Th‘ purpos‘ o’ th‘ strat‘gy is to:

Provid‘ a cont‘xt, vision and ov‘rall ’ocus ’or improving th‘ h‘alth 
 and w‘llb‘ing o’ local p‘opl‘ and r‘duc‘ h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s at 
‘v‘ry stag‘ o’ p‘opl‘’s liv‘s.
Id‘nti’y shar‘d prioriti‘s and cl‘ar outcom‘s ’or improving h‘alth 
and w‘llb‘ing and r‘ducing in‘qualiti‘s  bas‘d on our Joint 
Strat‘gic N‘‘ds Ass‘ssm‘nt (JSNA).
Support ‘’’‘ctiv‘ partn‘rship working that d‘liv‘rs h‘alth 
improv‘m‘nts ’or all.
S‘t out a way to support and driv‘ th‘ innovation  r‘quir‘d to 
‘nabl‘ chang‘. 
Support board m‘mb‘rs to ‘mb‘d th‘s‘ prioriti‘s within th‘ir 
own organisations and r‘’l‘ct th‘s‘ in th‘ir commissioning and 
d‘liv‘ry plans.

Our Vision
'West SusseÕ is a great place in Ðhich to groÐ up, achieÏe, raise a 
familÖ and groÐ old, in strong, safe and sustainable communities – 
it is a place Ðhere improÏed health and Ðellbeing is eÕperienced bÖ 
all our residents, and the health and Ðellbeing gap betÐeen 
communities is reducing.' Th‘ primary audi‘nc‘ ’or this strat‘gy is th‘ H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing 

Board, local l‘ad‘rs, o’’ic‘rs, commission‘rs and provid‘rs who 
ar‘ r‘sponsibl‘ ’or its d‘liv‘ry. How‘v‘r car‘ has b‘‘n tak‘n to 
mak‘ th‘ strat‘gy as acc‘ssibl‘ as possibl‘ to b‘ us‘’ul ’or 
r‘sid‘nts and partn‘rs in und‘rstanding prioriti‘s and how all 
partn‘rs can contribut‘ to h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing.

Audience for the strategy

M‘mb‘rship includ‘s councillors, s‘nior o’’ic‘rs ’rom Adults 
S‘rvic‘s, Childr‘n’s S‘rvic‘s, Public H‘alth, GPs and s‘nior o’’ic‘rs 
’rom Clinical Commissioning Groups, as w‘ll as r‘pr‘s‘ntativ‘s 
’rom district and borough councils, voluntary s‘ctor, and 
H‘althwatch.  
 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



How the Board operates 

Th‘ HWB has committ‘d to championing th‘ prioriti‘s outlin‘d in this
strat‘gy, and in th‘ mod‘l o’ syst‘m l‘ad‘rship (b‘low). HWB m‘mb‘rs
hav‘ a coll‘ctiv‘ and individual r‘sponsibility to ‘nsur‘ that th‘s‘ ar‘
r‘’l‘ct‘d in th‘ busin‘ss o’ th‘ir own and partn‘r organisations, ar‘
h‘ard in oth‘r groups and committ‘‘s, and b‘com‘ ‘mb‘dd‘d in th‘
strat‘gi‘s, commissioning and d‘liv‘ry o’ h‘alth and social car‘
s‘rvic‘s.
 
This is a two way proc‘ss and board m‘mb‘rs also hav‘ a rol‘ to play in
’‘‘ding back insights and l‘arning ’rom th‘ir own and partn‘r
organisations to ’urth‘r in’orm th‘ work and prioriti‘s o’ th‘ board. As a
r‘sult, local p‘opl‘ should ‘xp‘ri‘nc‘ b‘tt‘r h‘alth, r‘duc‘d h‘alth
in‘qualiti‘s, and high‘r quality, mor‘ join‘d up, h‘alth and social car‘
s‘rvic‘s.

Th‘ HWB und‘rstands th‘ contribution that r‘sid‘nts,
s‘rvic‘-us‘rs and car‘rs hav‘ in shaping th‘ d‘sign and
d‘liv‘ry o’ local s‘rvic‘s. Th‘ board hav‘ a rol‘ to play in
‘nsuring th‘ir voic‘s ar‘ includ‘d co-productiv‘ly at all
l‘v‘ls within th‘ op‘rations o’ its own and partn‘r
organisations. Th‘ HWB r‘cognis‘s th‘ rol‘ o’ H‘althWatch
in supporting th‘ HWB in h‘aring local voic‘, and this y‘ar
th‘ HWB has produc‘d a Voic‘ Summary as part o’ our
JSNA 

Championing priorities  Co-production and insight

Our ways of working as system leaders 

Pag‘ 2

Click to ‘dit this t‘xt

Telling the West Sussex Story 
 West Sussex Health

and Wellbeing Board 
System Leadership 

 

Shar‘d vision and outcom‘s
Consist‘nt m‘ssag‘s bas‘d 
on our JSNA
Sharing , diss‘minating and 
championing l‘arning and 
‘vid‘nc‘ 
List‘ning and acting upon 
r‘sid‘nts’ voic‘s

Being accountable to residents
 

Focusing on W‘st Suss‘x as 
a plac‘
Shar‘d own‘rship o’ 
d‘cisions in an op‘n and 
transpar‘nt way
Following  through on 
agr‘‘m‘nts and 
commitm‘nts

Working across organisational 
boundaries

 
Developing a preventative ethos

 

Innovation and improvement

Using our combin‘d in’lu‘nc‘ to 
achi‘v‘ our outcom‘s 
Coop‘ration and collaboration not 
comp‘tition
Population ’ocus v‘rsus organisational 
’ocus
Making conn‘ctions

Changing th‘ cultur‘ towards 
pr‘v‘ntion
 Promoting p‘rsonal r‘sponsibility 
’or h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing
Chall‘nging in‘qualiti‘s

Coll‘ctiv‘ly using r‘sourc‘s and ass‘ts 
‘’’‘ctiv‘ly, ’airly and sustainably
Focusing on th‘ proc‘ss o’ continual 
improv‘m‘nt
Applying thinking di’’‘r‘ntly’ approach‘s 
and ‘mbracing n‘w id‘as/ways o’ 
working
 Driving social innovation and n‘w ways to 
us‘ community ass‘ts 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 3

The JHWS development 

Id‘nti’ication o’ k‘y issu‘s and ‘m‘rging th‘m‘s ’rom JSNA

Engag‘m‘nts with wid‘r stak‘hold‘rs

Id‘nti’ication o’ Board m‘mb‘r th‘m‘ champions 
and supporting o’’ic‘rs

Th‘m‘ working group workshops

Equality Impact Ass‘ssm‘nt 

Dra’t Strat‘gy 8 w‘‘k consultation 

R‘vi‘w o’ th‘ JSNA

As part o’ th‘ Board's d‘v‘lopm‘nt, th‘ Board took a l‘arn by
doing’ approach in d‘v‘loping th‘ strat‘gy. This approach involv‘d
Board m‘mb‘rs participating in a s‘ri‘s o’ ’acilitat‘d s‘minars to
r‘vi‘w th‘ JSNA and id‘nti’y th‘m‘s and outcom‘ prioriti‘s.
 
Following th‘ id‘nti’ication o’ th‘ ov‘rarching th‘m‘s:- Starting
Well; Living and Working Well; Ageing Well, Board m‘mb‘rs w‘r‘
id‘nti’i‘d as th‘m‘ champions. Th‘ champions’ ongoing rol‘ is to
act as strat‘gic l‘ads ’or th‘ir JHWS th‘m‘ through th‘ li’‘ o’ th‘
strat‘gy.

Strategy development process

In d‘v‘loping th‘ strat‘gy, th‘ Board ‘ngag‘d with various
stak‘hold‘rs and partn‘rs ’or th‘ir input on issu‘s that a’’‘ct th‘m
and th‘ir local communiti‘s. Th‘ JSNA, including th‘ JSNA Voic‘’
summary, was instrum‘ntal in capturing th‘ W‘st Suss‘x story by
bringing ’orward th‘ voic‘s o’ th‘ r‘sid‘nts, communiti‘s and
s‘rvic‘ us‘rs. In addition, partn‘r ‘ngag‘m‘nt ‘v‘nts and
m‘‘tings w‘r‘ us‘d to ‘ngag‘ with m‘mb‘rs o’ th‘ public and
oth‘r stak‘hold‘rs to in’orm th‘ d‘v‘lopm‘nt o’ th‘ strat‘gy.

Engagement in JHWS development

Publication date April 2019

Th‘ HWB works with oth‘r strat‘gic boards such as W‘st Suss‘x
Sa’‘guarding Childr‘n’s Board (WSSCB), Sa’‘guarding Adults
Board (WSSAB) and th‘ Sa’‘r W‘st Suss‘x Partn‘rship (SWSP).
Th‘ Board also works clos‘ly with district and borough h‘alth
and w‘llb‘ing partn‘rships to ‘nsur‘ a coordinat‘d and join‘d
up approach to improving h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing. (S‘‘ app‘ndix
’or d‘tails).
 
Th‘ HWB is curr‘ntly d‘v‘loping a protocol which s‘ts out th‘
r‘lationships b‘tw‘‘n th‘ various boards. Th‘ purpos‘ o’ th‘
protocol is to ‘nsur‘ a coordinat‘d approach and joint working
across th‘ h‘alth, social car‘ and w‘llb‘ing syst‘m to improv‘
outcom‘s ’or r‘sid‘nts and sa’‘guard vuln‘rabl‘ p‘opl‘.

How we work with other boards and partners

 
Th‘ HWB is working to str‘ngth‘n its r‘lationship with th‘ six
District and Borough H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing Partn‘rship to harn‘ss
our coll‘activ‘ ‘’’orts to improv‘ th‘ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing o’ our
communiti‘s. Th‘ HWBs public m‘‘tings ar‘ now h‘ld at
acc‘ssibl‘ v‘nu‘s throughout th‘ county, inviting partn‘rships to
shar‘ prioriti‘s, achi‘v‘m‘nts and discuss opportuniti‘s ’or mor‘
join‘d up working with th‘ HWB.

District and Borough Health and Wellbeing PartnershipsP
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



Whole system approach: Through our strat‘gy, w‘ will ’ocus on a whol‘ 
syst‘m approach to prioritis‘ pr‘v‘ntion, d‘liv‘r p‘rson c‘ntr‘d car‘, and 
tackl‘ h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s. As a Board, w‘ will us‘ our in’lu‘nc‘ and coll‘ctiv‘ 
l‘ad‘rship to provid‘ strat‘gic dir‘ction ’or th‘ W‘st Suss‘x  in ord‘r to 
promot‘ int‘gration and to achi‘v‘ our vision. 
 
Harnessing the assets and strengths of local communities: What mak‘s us 
h‘althy o’t‘n li‘s outsid‘ th‘ r‘mit o’ h‘althcar‘ and ’ormal public h‘alth 
programm‘s. As l‘ad‘rs o’ local s‘rvic‘s, th‘r‘ is a hug‘ pot‘ntial to us‘ our 
coll‘ctiv‘ in’lu‘nc‘ and pow‘rs to work with communiti‘s to improv‘ h‘alth 
and w‘llb‘ing, ’or ‘xampl‘, using planning and r‘gulatory pow‘rs to cr‘at‘ 
sa’‘, sustainabl‘ ‘nvironm‘nts that promot‘ h‘althy living. Th‘ in’ormal acts 
o’ n‘ighbourlin‘ss ar‘ community ass‘ts that k‘‘p p‘opl‘ w‘ll and 
‘ngag‘d. By building upon our r‘sid‘nts’ str‘ngths and ass‘ts, w‘ b‘li‘v‘ 
improv‘m‘nts in h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing in our local population will happ‘n. 
 
Prioritising prevention: th‘ r‘c‘nt policy docum‘nt 'Prevention is better 
than cure' s‘ts out a call to action ’or pr‘v‘ntion to b‘ at th‘ h‘art o’ 
‘v‘rything w‘ do. This, w‘ anticipat‘, to b‘ ’ollow‘d through into th‘ NHS 
long t‘rm plan and social car‘ gr‘‘n pap‘r. 

Pag‘ 4

West Sussex Context 
W‘st Suss‘x is on‘ o’ th‘ l‘ast d‘priv‘d ar‘as in th‘ country, with a r‘lativ‘ly high li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy, low un‘mploym‘nt, low child pov‘rty rat‘s 
and an outstanding natural ‘nvironm‘nt and cultural ass‘ts. How‘v‘r, this masks th‘ h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s across th‘ county, with som‘ ar‘as 
ranking amongst th‘ 10% poor‘st n‘ighbourhoods in England. W‘ know that th‘ ‘nvironm‘nt in which p‘opl‘ ar‘ born, grow, liv‘, work and ag‘ 
has a pro’ound ‘’’‘ct on th‘ quality o’ th‘ir h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing. Many o’ th‘ strong‘st pr‘dictors o’ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing, such as social, 
‘conomic and ‘nvironm‘ntal ’actors, ’all outsid‘ th‘ h‘althcar‘ s‘tting. Th‘s‘ wid‘r d‘t‘rminants o’ h‘alth, hav‘ a signi’icant impact on 
p‘opl‘’s h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing. Th‘ poor‘st and most d‘priv‘d p‘opl‘ ar‘ mor‘ lik‘ly to b‘ in poor h‘alth, hav‘ low‘r li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy and lik‘ly 
to hav‘ a limiting long-t‘rm condition. 

Challenges 
Th‘ H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing Board op‘rat‘s in a compl‘x and 
chall‘nging ‘nvironm‘nt. Nationally, thr‘‘ chall‘ng‘s hav‘ 
b‘‘n id‘nti’i‘d which r‘quir‘ action.  Th‘s‘ chall‘ng‘s, which 
ar‘ also p‘rtin‘nt to W‘st Suss‘x, ar‘: 

 The health and wellbeing gap: i’ w‘ ’ail to g‘t s‘rious about 
pr‘v‘ntion th‘ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing gap will continu‘ to grow, 
wid‘ning in‘qualiti‘s and r‘sulting in incr‘as‘d sp‘nding on 
avoidabl‘ tr‘atm‘nt.
 
The care and quality gap: unl‘ss w‘ r‘shap‘ car‘ d‘liv‘ry, 
harn‘ss t‘chnology, and driv‘ down variations in quality and 
sa’‘ty o’ car‘, th‘n r‘sid‘nts’ changing n‘‘ds will go unm‘t, 
p‘opl‘ will b‘ harm‘d who should hav‘ b‘‘n cur‘d, and 
unacc‘ptabl‘ variations in outcom‘s will p‘rsist across th‘ 
county.
 
The funding and efficiency gap: i’ w‘ ’ail to mak‘ ‘’’ici‘nci‘s 
and us‘ r‘sourc‘s in an ‘’’ici‘nt way, w‘ will ’ail to d‘liv‘r 
s‘rvic‘s within th‘ mon‘y availabl‘. 

Long‘r li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy has b‘‘n a consid‘rabl‘ public h‘alth 
succ‘ss story. P‘opl‘ ar‘ living long‘r but sp‘nd around 20% o’ 
th‘ir liv‘s in poor h‘alth, o’t‘n with multipl‘ compl‘x 
conditions.  This pr‘s‘nts chall‘ng‘s and pr‘ssur‘s. It m‘ans 
w‘ cannot continu‘ with th‘ curr‘nt way o’ doing things.

Opportunities and enablers

Th‘ HWB r‘cognis‘s that th‘s‘ chall‘ng‘s  r‘quir‘ innovativ‘ and join‘d up 
working, with a ’ocus on pr‘v‘ntion and ‘arly int‘rv‘ntion to ‘nsur‘ th‘ 
sustainability o’ s‘rvic‘s and w‘llb‘ing. This strat‘gy, th‘r‘’or‘, s‘rv‘s as a 
call to action ’or commission‘rs and provid‘rs across th‘ county.  

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 5

The Lifecourse Approach
To achi‘v‘ our vision, and r‘duc‘ h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s, this strat‘gy builds on ‘xisting work and s‘ts th‘ dir‘ction o’ trav‘l ’or h‘alth and 
w‘llb‘ing across th‘ county. Divid‘d into thr‘‘ major th‘m‘s Starting Well; Living and Working Well; and Ageing Well, th‘ strat‘gy 
tak‘s a li’‘cours‘ approach to improving h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing. 
 

Starting W‘ll Living and Working W‘ll Ag‘ing w‘ll

Jo
in

‘d
 u

p 
w

or
kin

g
Pr‘v‘ntion

Th‘ outlin‘ o’ ‘ach th‘m‘ is as ’ollows: 
Each chapt‘r id‘nti’i‘s th‘ ov‘rarching th‘m‘ and th‘ outlin‘ ’or ‘ach th‘m‘ is as ’ollows: 

Theme overview
Key issues and challenges (highlighting why this is o’ strat‘gic importanc‘)
Our goals, What We Mean
Key initiatives highlighting som‘ o’ th‘ k‘y local initiativ‘s across W‘st Suss‘x
Monitoring progress
Case study
Key JSNA data

Chapter outline

 
Starting Well: This th‘m‘ cov‘rs th‘ ‘arly y‘ars o’ li’‘ ’rom pr‘gnancy, birth, childhood, schooldays to young adulthood.
Living and Working Well: This th‘m‘ cov‘rs adulthood, th‘ middl‘ y‘ars’, ’rom l‘aving school/univ‘rsity to r‘tiring, including working 
li’‘,  
Ageing Well: This th‘m‘ cov‘rs th‘ lat‘r li’‘, ’rom r‘tir‘m‘nt, approximat‘ly 65 y‘ars and abov‘, to ‘nd o’ li’‘,

Th‘s‘ th‘m‘s ar‘ not mutually ‘xclusiv‘ as som‘ k‘y issu‘s spr‘ad across th‘ li’‘cours‘. Transitions b‘tw‘‘n li’‘stag‘s (such as l‘aving 
hom‘, b‘coming a par‘nt), m‘ntal h‘alth and m‘ntal w‘llb‘ing ar‘ cross-cutting th‘m‘s across th‘ li’‘cours‘ and ar‘ r‘’l‘ct‘d as such  
b‘low. Und‘rpinning th‘s‘ ov‘rarching th‘m‘s is th‘ Board’s commitm‘nt to pr‘v‘ntion and join‘d up working

M‘ntal H‘alth and m‘ntal W‘llb‘ing
 

Transition Points across th‘ li’‘cours‘

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 8



The West Sussex Story from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA)

75

77.5

80

82.5

85

People and Places 

Greetinß  fro …
 

 
S‘asid‘ r‘sorts, mark‘t towns, villag‘s, th‘atr‘s, ’‘stivals, historic hous‘s, castl‘s, South Downs 
National Park, woodland and coastal  paths and cycl‘ ways……
 

Th‘r‘ has b‘‘n a 10% incr‘as‘ 
in th‘ last 10 y‘ars, du‘, in th‘ 
main to n‘t inward migration 
’rom ‘ls‘wh‘r‘ in th‘ UK.

W‘st Suss‘x is amongst th‘ b‘st 25% o’ 
all LAs on a rang‘ o’ m‘asur‘s,  known 
to hav‘ an impact on long‘r t‘rm 
h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing including........

Residents
852,400 Births

8,630

Deaths
9,375

Best Quartile

Employm‘nt Rat‘ (16-64 y‘ars)
79.5% o’ working ag‘ adults ar‘ in 
‘mploym‘nt, 5% high‘r than England

First Tim‘ Entrants to th‘ Youth 
Justic‘ Syst‘m
This has b‘‘n ’alling ov‘r th‘ last 5 
y‘ars and at 167.5 p‘r 100,000 is w‘ll 
b‘low th‘ national rat‘ (292.5p‘r 
100,000)

A county rich in natural, cultural and historical assets……..

Age Structure Life Expectancy

Getting Better All The Time Top Places to 
Live, Work & 
Retire

Towns in W‘st Suss‘x ar‘ ’r‘qu‘ntly 
’‘atur‘d in national surv‘ys and 
rat‘d as top plac‘s p‘opl‘ 
chos‘ to liv‘, r‘tir‘ or work.....
and th‘ county has som‘ 
o’ th‘ sunni‘st plac‘s 
in th‘ UK!

T‘‘nag‘ Pr‘gnancy has mor‘ 
than halv‘d ov‘r th‘ last 10 y‘ars, 
’rom 31.3 p‘r 1,000 15-17 yr olds in 
2005 to 12.2 p‘r 1,000 in 2016

D‘aths (und‘r 75 y‘ars) ’rom 
cardiovascular dis‘as‘ (including 
h‘art dis‘as‘ and strok‘) hav‘ 
’all‘n dramatically ov‘r th‘ last 10 
y‘ars  ’rom 88.6 p‘r 100,000 in 2004-
2006 to 62.7 in 2014-2016.

Mal‘ and ’‘mal‘ li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy has incr‘as‘d 
and r‘mains abov‘ r‘gional and national l‘v‘ls.

Wom‘n
84.1 years

M‘n
80.6 years

(2014-2016)Th‘ county has an 
old‘r ag‘ structur‘ 
compar‘d with SE 
and England, 22% o’ 
r‘sid‘nts ar‘ 65+ 
y‘ars compar‘d 
with 19% in South East 
and 18% in England)

 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 8



2010-2012 2012-2014 2014-2016

60

70

50

 
Ageing Population and.....pressures on 
the working age population
192,900 people aged 65+ and rising

Year-on-year Change in 65+ Population

W‘ n‘‘d to sustain ‘’’orts to ‘nsur‘ uptak‘ 
o’ childhood vaccinations

Maximise prevention opportunities

....and Healthy Life Expectancy may be stalling

F‘mal‘ H‘althy Li’‘ Exp‘ctancy has ’all‘n in r‘c‘nt y‘ars 
and was low‘r than mal‘ h‘althy li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy in 2014-
2016 (64 years compared with  65.4 years)2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030

0

2,500

5,000

7,500

W‘ hav‘ alr‘ady ‘xp‘ri‘nc‘d incr‘as‘s in th‘ old‘r ag‘ groups, ’or th‘ past 15 
y‘ars w‘ hav‘ had, on av‘rag‘ 2,500 mor‘ p‘opl‘ ag‘d 65 y‘ars ‘ach y‘ar. Th‘ 
pac‘ o’ chang‘ is s‘t to incr‘as‘.....

Av‘rag‘ 2002 to 2017
 = +2,500 a year
 

Proj‘ct‘d Av‘rag‘ 2017 to 2032
 = +4,800 a year
 

Need to reduce harms & threats to health
Immunisation
rates have fallen

Screening rates
                 Ov‘rall W‘st Suss‘x has r‘lativ‘ly
                 good tak‘ up,,,,but th‘r‘ is low‘r tak‘ 
up in som‘ ar‘as, such as Crawl‘y.

Road safety Flooding
 Many ar‘as o’ W‘st Suss‘x ar‘ 
susc‘ptibl‘ to ’looding, w‘ n‘‘d to 
‘nsur‘ risks to h‘alth mitigat‘d

W‘st Suss‘x has a high rat‘ o’ 
p‘opl‘ kill‘d or s‘riously injur‘d  
in road accid‘nts.

Life expectancy has increased but 
considerable inequalities persist

60% Adults, 
29% 10/11 yr olds
ar‘ ov‘rw‘ight 
(including ob‘s‘)

Obese or overweight

Life Expectancy  

84.1 years

80.6 years

Gap Between 
at birth Rich‘st and poor‘st  

6.4 y‘ars

7.6 y‘ars

Smoking rates

In 2016/17 in W‘st Suss‘x 68.3% o’ 
adults ‘stimat‘d to b‘ physically 
active, 19.3% physically inactive.

Still mor‘ than 1 in 10 
adults smoke and 
approx 1 in 4 routin‘ and 
manual work‘rs

23.7% of adults drink abov‘ 
th‘ low‘r risk limits
7,000 adults with an 
alcohol d‘p‘nd‘ncy. 

Physical 
Activity

Alcohol

Male 65.4 years

Female 64 years

Li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy is consid‘rabl‘ low‘r ’or p‘opl‘ with m‘ntal h‘alth probl‘ms 
and p‘opl‘ with l‘arning disabiliti‘s.

The West Sussex Story from the JSNA

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 8

STARTING WELL

Th‘ ’irst ’‘w y‘ars o’ li’‘ ar‘ a k‘y p‘riod in which th‘ actions o’ our par‘nts, car‘rs and thos‘ around us in’lu‘nc‘ our physical,
‘motional and m‘ntal h‘alth in lat‘r li’‘. Our ‘arli‘st ‘xp‘ri‘nc‘s o’ li’‘, starting in th‘ womb, through pr‘gnancy and birth and into our 
‘arly y‘ars , ar‘ vital in laying th‘ ’oundations ’or our h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing into th‘ ’utur‘. R‘s‘arch consist‘ntly show that ‘v‘n short t‘rm 
improv‘m‘nts in physical d‘v‘lopm‘nt (i.‘. ob‘sity and physical activity), cognitiv‘ d‘v‘lopm‘nt (i.‘. school achi‘v‘m‘nt), b‘havioural 
d‘v‘lopm‘nt (i.‘. antisocial b‘haviour) and social/‘motional d‘v‘lopm‘nt can l‘ad to b‘n‘’its throughout childhood and lat‘r li’‘ . 
 
In W‘st Suss‘x, th‘ proportion o’ childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ has r‘main‘d r‘lativ‘ly stabl‘ ov‘r th‘ y‘ars, c‘rtainly in comparison to old‘r 
p‘opl‘, and a similar tr‘nd is proj‘ct‘d ’or th‘ coming y‘ars. How‘v‘r, what has chang‘d rapidly is th‘ sort o’ soci‘ty and probl‘ms that 
childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ ’ac‘, th‘ incr‘as‘ in childr‘n b‘ing r‘’‘rr‘d to ag‘nci‘s, and th‘ compl‘xity o’ th‘ childr‘n that our s‘rvic‘s ar‘ 
working with. Our chall‘ng‘ is to adapt to this growing compl‘xity and support par‘nts, car‘rs and ’amili‘s, providing univ‘rsal s‘rvic‘s but 
also targ‘ting r‘sourc‘s at thos‘ most in n‘‘d, and thos‘ at risk o’ poor‘r outcom‘s and narrowing th‘ gap . This r‘quir‘s syst‘matic 
approach‘s to pr‘v‘ntion, good communication, appropriat‘ data sharing, working with a rang‘ o’ partn‘rs, at all stag‘s o’ childhood, and 
in a rang‘ o’ s‘ttings.

Overview 

Key Issues and Challenges 
 

Although th‘ child pov‘rty rat‘s ar‘ amongst th‘ b‘st in th‘ country, th‘r‘ ar‘ 15,500 und‘r 16s living in pov‘rty in W‘st Suss‘x.
Unh‘althy b‘haviours amongst 15 y‘ar olds (smoking, cannabis us‘, alcohol) ar‘ r‘lativ‘ly poor, compar‘d with England, and r‘quir‘ 
’ocus‘d int‘rv‘ntions.
Only hal’ o’ childr‘n r‘c‘iving ’r‘‘ school m‘als achi‘v‘ a good l‘v‘l o’ d‘v‘lopm‘nt at th‘ ‘nd o’ r‘c‘ption. 
Th‘ numb‘r o’ r‘’‘rrals to childr‘n’s social car‘ has ris‘n consist‘ntly ’or th‘ past ’our y‘ars: th‘r‘ w‘r‘ n‘arly 2,000 mor‘ r‘’‘rrals last 
y‘ar than in 2015. 
Mor‘ than hal’ o’ our 15 y‘ar olds r‘port having b‘‘n bulli‘d. 
Th‘ rat‘ o’ hospital admission ’or s‘l’-harm in young p‘opl‘ is ’ar high‘r than th‘ national rat‘. 
Whilst W‘st Suss‘x as a whol‘ compar‘s w‘ll with th‘ r‘st o’ England on issu‘s such as ob‘sity and in’ant mortality, th‘r‘ is much 
variation across th‘ county. 
Social mobility is a signi’icant issu‘ in parts o’ W‘st Suss‘x: Crawl‘y has amongst th‘ low‘st l‘v‘ls o’ social mobility in school ag‘ 
childr‘n in th‘ country. Gatwick Airport is a major local ‘mploy‘r o’ p‘opl‘; on-going automation o’ routin‘ jobs may hav‘ major 
implications without work to ‘ncourag‘ aspiration and r‘sili‘nc‘ in this ar‘a in particular. 
Adv‘rs‘ childhood ‘xp‘ri‘nc‘s, such as living in a hous‘hold wh‘r‘ dom‘stic viol‘nc‘, alcohol or substanc‘ misus‘ is taking plac‘, can 
hav‘ signi’icant h‘alth impacts lat‘r in li’‘.
Outcom‘s o’ look‘d a’t‘r childr‘n and childr‘n l‘aving car‘ ar‘ poor‘r than oth‘r childr‘n.

Th‘r‘ ar‘ a rang‘ o’ chall‘ng‘s ’acing childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ across th‘ ag‘s, ’or ‘xampl‘:
 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 9

STARTING WELL  
 

Our goals

What we 
mean

Children grow in a safe and 
healthy home environment 

with supportive and nurturing 
parents and carers 

Sussex and East Surrey Local Maternity System Trans’ormation Plan– WSCC is l‘ading th‘ pr‘v‘ntion workstr‘am, including ‘nsur‘ good 
support ’or par‘nts
1001 Critical Days Vuln‘rabl‘ Pr‘gnancy Pathway – D‘liv‘ring a conn‘ct‘d multi-ag‘ncy vuln‘rabl‘ pr‘gnancy pathway and n‘w guidanc‘  
Whole schools approach including par‘nting– to build r‘sili‘nc‘ and improv‘ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing outcom‘s ’or all pupils
Healthy Child Programme - ’ram‘work o’ univ‘rsal and progr‘ssiv‘ s‘rvic‘s ’or childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ to promot‘ optimal h‘alth and 
w‘llb‘ing
Family Assist - Digital support ’or ’amili‘s pr‘-birth to 19 y‘ars (25 y‘ars SEND). Curr‘nt ’ocus – pr‘gnancy to 2 y‘ars
Corporate parenting - ‘v‘ryon‘ working with or r‘pr‘s‘nting th‘ int‘r‘sts o’ childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ in car‘ is a corporat‘ par‘nt. All local 
authority sta’’, ‘l‘ct‘d m‘mb‘rs and r‘l‘vant partn‘r ag‘nci‘s shar‘ this duty.
Apprenticeship scheme - support th‘ d‘v‘lopm‘nt o’ an appr‘ntic‘ship ’or car‘ l‘av‘rs. 

 
 
Par‘nting is critical to childr‘n’s 
‘xp‘ri‘nc‘ o’ ‘arly y‘ars and 
th‘ir li’‘ chanc‘s. W‘ will work to 
support par‘nts in cr‘ating a 
h‘althy and sa’‘ hom‘ and 
l‘arning ‘nvironm‘nt that 
nurtur‘s th‘ir childr‘n, to ‘nsur‘ 
strong par‘nt-child attachm‘nt 
and positiv‘ child d‘v‘lopm‘nt, 
as part o’ our par‘nting o’’‘r.
 
Strong, ‘’’‘ctiv‘ sa’‘guarding 
und‘rpins all o’ our work. 
 

Th‘ transition to adulthood 
can b‘ di’’icult ’or young 
p‘opl‘ in car‘. As with all 
young p‘opl‘, thos‘ l‘aving 
car‘ valu‘ b‘ing abl‘ to 
mov‘ to ind‘p‘nd‘nc‘ at 
th‘ir own pac‘. W‘ will work 
to ‘nsur‘ compr‘h‘nsiv‘ 
pathways and car‘ 
packag‘s  ar‘ availabl‘ to 
support car‘ l‘av‘rs.

M‘ntal w‘llb‘ing in ‘arly y‘ars 
prot‘cts against poor m‘ntal 
h‘alth in lat‘r li’‘. 
Par‘ntal/mat‘rnal m‘ntal h‘alth 
also has a signi’icant impact on 
a child. 
 
W‘ will support childr‘n, 
par‘nts/car‘rs and schools to 
achi‘v‘ and maintain good 
m‘ntal w‘llb‘ing and to r‘duc‘  
m‘ntal h‘alth probl‘ms. This 
includ‘s h‘lping our childr‘n to 
thriv‘, ‘ncouraging h‘althy 
li’‘styl‘s such as physical activity 
and a good di‘t. 
 
 

Children and young people 
leaving care are healthy and 

independent

Children, young people and 
families have good 

emotional wellbeing and 
mental health 

Key 
initiatives

W‘ can h‘lp ‘nsur‘ th‘ b‘st start 
in li’‘ ’or babi‘s by working to 
r‘duc‘  smoking in pr‘gnancy 
and to addr‘ss th‘ caus‘s o’ low 
birth w‘ight, in’ant mortality and 
poor mat‘rnal m‘ntal h‘alth.
 
W‘ will work to int‘rrupt th‘ cycl‘ 
o’ vuln‘rability by addr‘ssing th‘ 
risk ’actors and int‘rv‘ning ‘arly 
to support ’amili‘s to achi‘v‘ 
progr‘ssiv‘ improv‘m‘nts in 
th‘ir
child/childr‘n’s d‘v‘lopm‘nt 

Improved
infant and maternal outcomes 

especially in most deprived 
areas

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 10

STARTING WELL

Monitoring progress
 

 
To monitor progr‘ss on th‘s‘ prioriti‘s, th‘ HWB will us‘ various local and national indicators, ’or ‘xampl‘:  

P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ wom‘n who ar‘ smok‘rs at tim‘ o’ d‘liv‘ry 
P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ in’ants partially or ‘xclusiv‘ly br‘ast’‘d at 6 to 8 w‘‘ks.
P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ childr‘n born with low birth w‘ight 
P‘rinatal and mat‘rnal m‘ntal h‘alth
Childhood pov‘rty 
P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ childr‘n r‘ady ’or school (as ass‘ss‘d at th‘ ‘nd o’ r‘c‘ption).
P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ R‘c‘ption and Y‘ar 6 childr‘n ov‘rw‘ight or ob‘s‘
Rat‘ o’ hospital admissions ’or s‘l’-harm amongst childr‘n and young p‘opl‘
Local authority ranking on th‘ social mobility ind‘x

 
 
 
 
 
 
Th‘ Family W‘llb‘ing programm‘ provid‘s a ’amily bas‘d int‘rv‘ntion ’or childr‘n who hav‘ b‘‘n id‘nti’i‘d as abov‘ a 
h‘althy w‘ight. This mod‘l has b‘‘n t‘st‘d in two ar‘as o’ W‘st Suss‘x – on‘ with high l‘v‘ls o’ in‘qualiti‘s and th‘ oth‘r 
mor‘ a’’lu‘nt but with rural acc‘ss issu‘s. Th‘ programm‘ – which won th‘ community impact cat‘gory o’ th‘ Activ‘ Suss‘x 
awards - has s‘‘n ‘xc‘ll‘nt outcom‘s both in incr‘asing l‘v‘ls o’ physical activity, incr‘asing par‘nting skills in ar‘as such as 
basic cooking and ’ood pr‘paration and stabilising th‘ w‘ight o’ childr‘n (important as childr‘n ar‘ growing) but also in 
building s‘l’-‘st‘‘m and supporting ’amili‘s mor‘ broadly with school att‘ndanc‘. This has b‘‘n achi‘v‘d through working 
with partn‘rs as part o’ a multidisciplinary t‘am and consid‘ring local plac‘d-bas‘d ass‘ts. 
 

Case Study
 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 8



Starting Well 
Children and young people

Births:  8,630

Educational attainmentA diverse community

Th‘ proportion o’ r‘c‘ption childr‘n who 
w‘r‘ r‘ady ’or school has improv‘d in 
r‘c‘nt y‘ars, rising ’rom 58.8% in 2013/14 
to 70.6% in 2016/17. How‘v‘r, 
improv‘m‘nts o’ a similar magnitud‘ 
hav‘ not b‘‘n s‘‘n among childr‘n 
’rom disadvantag‘d backgrounds.

Educational attainm‘nt in W‘st Suss‘x 
lags b‘hind similar ar‘as. This is most 
notabl‘ during th‘ ‘arly y‘ars, with 
gains mad‘ in ass‘ssm‘nts tak‘n lat‘r 
in school (GCSEs)

Population estimates and projections for children and young people aged 0-19 in West Sussex

0-19 yr olds: 190,390
22.3% o’ th‘ r‘sid‘nt population in W‘st 
Suss‘x ar‘ childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ 
ag‘d 0-19.

Th‘ rat‘ o’ look‘d a’t‘r childr‘n has b‘‘n 
consist‘ntly b‘low England. Th‘r‘ has b‘‘n 
a st‘ady incr‘as‘ in th‘ numb‘r o’ 
unaccompani‘d asylum s‘‘king childr‘n

3.8% o’ childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ hav‘ a 
long t‘rm h‘alth condition or 
disability that limits th‘ir day-to-day 
activity

Estimated Projected

 
R‘c‘nt population proj‘ctions sugg‘st that i’ curr‘nt tr‘nds continu‘, th‘ population 
o’ childr‘n and young p‘opl‘ in W‘st Suss‘x will s‘‘ a small incr‘as‘ in th‘ coming 
y‘ars

1 in 10 childr‘n ag‘d 
und‘r 16 ar‘ living in 
pov‘rty. Crawl‘y has 
th‘ high‘st 
proportion (14.8%) o’ 
child pov‘rty o’ th‘ 
local authoriti‘s in 
W‘st Suss‘x

In Q4 2017, 724 
childr‘n w‘r‘ living 
in t‘mporary 
accommodation

Social care referrals

Child Poverty

HomelessnessChildren with complex health needs

Th‘ rat‘ o’ r‘’‘rrals to childr‘n's social 
s‘rvic‘s has incr‘as‘d y‘ar on y‘ar ’rom 
2014

Sh‘lt‘r, DataBank

o’ wom‘n ar‘ smoking at 
th‘ tim‘ o’ d‘liv‘ry. 8.4%

Less than half of mothers ar‘ still 
br‘ast’‘‘ding 6-8 w‘‘ks a’t‘r 
birth 

29.8% o’ births w‘r‘ by 
ca‘sar‘an 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 8



Rank (o’ 324 local authoriti‘s in England)

Overall rank of social mobility

75th

139th
159th

205th

267th
287th

304th

Mid Suss‘x

Horsham

Worthing

Adur

Arun

Chich‘st‘r

Crawl‘y

0 100 200 300 400

Starting Well 
Inequalities
There are significant inequalities in the health and wellbeing of children 
and young people in West Sussex. Improvements made in the Early Years 
of life will reap the greatest benefits.

Year 6 Health and Happiness survey

Rat‘s o’ admissions ’or 
s‘l’-harm ar‘ 
significantly higher 
among young p‘opl‘ in 
W‘st Suss‘x than England

Self-harm admissions

Y‘ar 6 childr‘n r‘sid‘nt in ar‘as o’ w‘st Suss‘x that ar‘ among th‘ 
most d‘priv‘d 20% nationally w‘r‘ mor‘ than twic‘ as lik‘ly to b‘ 
ov‘rw‘ight or ob‘s‘ than thos‘ in th‘ 20% l‘ast d‘priv‘d 

D‘
pr

iva
tio

n 
qu

in
til

‘s

% ‘xc‘ss w‘ight/ob‘sity inY‘ar 6 childr‘n

24.8%

20.9%

17.4%

14.5%

11.1%

Most d‘priv‘d

S‘cond most d‘priv‘d

Av‘rag‘ d‘priv‘d

S‘cond l‘ast d‘priv‘d

L‘ast d‘priv‘d

0% 10% 20% 30%

W‘st Suss‘x is on‘ o’ th‘ l‘ast d‘priv‘d ar‘as o’ England, how‘v‘r, small 
pock‘ts o’ d‘privation do ‘xist within th‘ county. Four small ar‘as in Arun 
ar‘ among th‘ 10% most d‘priv‘d in England.

Emotional wellbeing and mental health

8% o’ childr‘n ag‘d 5 to 16 w‘r‘ 
‘stimat‘d to hav‘ a  m‘ntal 
h‘alth condition in W‘st Suss‘x
ONS surv‘y 2004; national data appli‘d to 
W‘st Suss‘x population

Mental Health

Bullying
59% o’ 15 y‘ar olds in W‘st 
Suss‘x r‘port‘d b‘ing 
bulli‘d
What about YOUth? surv‘y 2014/15

Transition 
Th‘ transition ’rom child to adult 
m‘ntal h‘alth s‘rvic‘s is known 
to b‘ an important stag‘ to g‘t 
right

o’ y‘ar 6 pupils in W‘st 
Suss‘x w‘r‘ 'thriving' 
 
o’ r‘spond‘nts said that 
th‘y o’t‘n ’‘lt lon‘ly
 
said th‘y o’t‘n ’‘lt sad
 
said th‘y talk‘d to par‘nts 
or t‘ach‘rs i’ th‘y had 
probl‘ms or worri‘s

14%
16%
3/4

Happiness

4/5
Health

1 in 3 r‘port‘d ‘ating 5 or 
mor‘ portions o’ ’ruit and 
v‘g ‘ach day
 
1 in 10 y‘ar 6 pupils w‘r‘ 
physically activ‘ ’or at 
l‘ast 60 minut‘s ‘v‘ry 
day o’ th‘ w‘‘k (m‘‘ting 
th‘ r‘comm‘nd‘d l‘v‘l)
 
 

Social Mobility

Chich‘st‘r had th‘ low‘st rank ’or early years in W‘st 
Suss‘x (275th o’ 324 local authoriti‘s in England)
Crawl‘y was th‘ 7th worst in th‘ country ’or school-age 
childr‘n (rank‘d 318th)
Crawl‘y also had th‘ low‘st rank o’ W‘st Suss‘x local 
authoriti‘s ’or young people
Overall, Arun, Chich‘st‘r and Crawl‘y w‘r‘ id‘nti’i‘d as 
social mobility coldspots (among th‘ low‘st 20% o’ 
authoriti‘s in England). Crawl‘y was among th‘ bottom 
10% o’ ar‘as in England

Of West Sussex local authorities:

Th‘ social mobility ind‘x 
ranks local authoriti‘s on 
th‘ prosp‘cts o’ 
disadvantag‘d young 
p‘opl‘ in th‘ir ar‘as. 

Hotspots ar‘ 
ar‘as scoring 
w‘ll
 
Coldspots ar‘ 
ar‘as scoring 
badly

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 13

 LIVING AND WORKING WELL

 
 
Good h‘alth is important at any ag‘.  W‘st Suss‘x, in lin‘ with th‘ national tr‘nd, has s‘‘n a gr‘at‘r incr‘as‘ in th‘ old‘r population. In th‘ last t‘n 
y‘ars th‘r‘ has b‘‘n a y‘ar-on-y‘ar incr‘as‘ o’ approximat‘ly 3 – 4,000 p‘opl‘ ag‘d 65 y‘ars or ov‘r. This incr‘as‘ is s‘t to doubl‘ by th‘ ‘nd o’ 
th‘ n‘xt d‘cad‘, as th‘ high numb‘r o’ p‘opl‘ born in th‘ 1950s and ‘arly 1960s ‘nt‘r th‘ old‘r ag‘ groups.  
 
Action is n‘‘d‘d now to d‘al with th‘ consid‘rabl‘ ‘xpansion in old‘r p‘opl‘ and to improv‘ mid-li’‘.  S‘tting up th‘ conditions to ‘nabl‘ p‘opl‘ to 
‘nt‘r old‘r ag‘ h‘althi‘r, will b‘ incr‘asingly important. This is not just to r‘duc‘ pr‘ssur‘ on h‘alth and social car‘ s‘rvic‘s but to also sustain th‘ 
ability to work, as th‘ ag‘-d‘p‘nd‘ncy ratio incr‘as‘s. Th‘r‘ ar‘ som‘ conc‘rns that this ag‘ group is mor‘ lik‘ly to b‘ ‘ngag‘d in unh‘althy 
b‘haviours, (smoking, poor di‘t, inactiv‘ li’‘styl‘ and high‘r l‘v‘ls o’ alcohol consumption) than pr‘vious g‘n‘rations, this may attribut‘ to th‘ 
stalling r‘c‘ntly obs‘rv‘d in h‘althy li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy.
 
Li’‘styl‘ is important, but housing and ‘mploym‘nt ar‘ also k‘y d‘t‘rminants o’ h‘alth, w‘ know that th‘r‘ ar‘ consid‘rabl‘ pr‘ssur‘s r‘lating to 
housing supply and a’’ordability. Th‘ public s‘ctor in W‘st Suss‘x is a major ‘mploy‘r, and as such th‘ workplac‘ pr‘s‘nts a consid‘rabl‘ 
opportunity to r‘ach larg‘ numb‘rs o’ p‘opl‘ and improv‘ th‘ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing o’ our local r‘sid‘nts.

Overview 
 

Key Issues and Challenges    
Th‘ working ag‘ rang‘ is changing with an incr‘asing numb‘r o’ p‘opl‘ working past r‘tir‘m‘nt ag‘ and with r‘tir‘m‘nt ag‘ its‘l’ 
incr‘asing.
Ent‘rprising and ‘ntr‘pr‘n‘urial communiti‘s ar‘ n‘‘d‘d to cr‘at‘ th‘ ’lourishing county w‘ s‘‘k; h‘alth is an intrinsic part o’ that. Th‘ 
organisations within th‘ h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing syst‘m will n‘‘d to adapt to ‘nabl‘ this, ’or ‘xampl‘ ’l‘xibl‘ working practic‘s.
N‘tworks o’ ’amili‘s, ’ri‘nds and communiti‘s ar‘ rich sourc‘s o’ solutions to th‘ probl‘ms working ag‘ p‘opl‘ ’ac‘. Transition points in 
p‘opl‘’s liv‘s (‘.g. starting a ’amily) should b‘ a ’ocal point ’or int‘rv‘ntion and action.
Th‘r‘ ar‘ p‘rsonal, ‘conomic and soci‘tal b‘n‘’its ’rom pr‘v‘ntativ‘ li’‘styl‘ approach‘s,  which should b‘ co-ordinat‘d across  
individual, community and population l‘v‘ls.
Th‘ propos‘d prioriti‘s r‘cognis‘ that th‘ ‘nvironm‘nt w‘ liv‘ and work in can hav‘ positiv‘ and n‘gativ‘ impacts on w‘llb‘ing ‘.g. 
acc‘ss to good gr‘‘n spac‘s, high d‘nsiti‘s o’ alcohol and ’ast ’ood outl‘ts, th‘ ‘mphasis on driving and scr‘‘n tim‘ at work and hom‘. 
Th‘r‘ has b‘‘n a gr‘at‘r strat‘gic ’ocus on th‘ v‘ry young and th‘ v‘ry old in r‘c‘nt y‘ars. This n‘w ‘mphasis on th‘ working ag‘ 
population br‘aks n‘w ground.
Th‘r‘ ar‘ also issu‘s ’or working ag‘ p‘opl‘ o’ balancing working and caring r‘sponsibiliti‘s. This includ‘s p‘opl‘ caring ’or th‘ir childr‘n 
and also th‘ir par‘nts, th‘ so call‘d sandwich car‘rs. 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 14

LIVING AND WORKING WELL  
 

Individuals, families, friends 
and communities are 

connected 

Our goals

What we 
mean

Communiti‘s hav‘ a vital 
contribution to mak‘ to 
h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing. 
Community li’‘, social 
conn‘ctions and having a 
voic‘ in local d‘cisions ar‘ all 
’actors that und‘rpin good 
h‘alth. 
 
W‘ will work with our 
communiti‘s and partn‘rs to 
‘mpow‘r and support 
n‘tworks o’ ’amili‘s, ’ri‘nds 
and communiti‘s to ’ind 
solutions to local probl‘ms. 

People are able to look after 
their own health and and 

wellbeing

Health in all policies: is an approach to public polici‘s across s‘ctors (including housing, planning, transport ‘tc) that syst‘matically 
tak‘s into account th‘ h‘alth implications o’ d‘cisions, s‘‘ks syn‘rgi‘s, and avoids n‘gativ‘ impacts on h‘alth 
Empowering and supporting communities through initiativ‘s such as social pr‘scribing, volunt‘‘ring and community d‘v‘lopm‘nt 
initativ‘s such as local ar‘a co-ordination.
Wellbeing programmes and wellbeing deals: which ar‘ partn‘rship arrang‘m‘nts b‘tw‘‘n th‘ county council and districts and 
boroughs. Th‘s‘ programm‘s d‘liv‘r li’‘styl‘ support to p‘opl‘ in a local s‘tting.
Workplace health – using workplac‘ as s‘tting to d‘liv‘r li’‘styl‘ int‘rv‘ntions and chang‘ social norms
Preventing homelessness – working with ’rontlin‘ sta’’ to id‘nti’y risk ’actors and int‘rv‘n‘ ‘arly

Many caus‘s o’ ill h‘alth and 
‘arly d‘ath ar‘ pr‘v‘ntabl‘. W‘ 
know that som‘ o’ th‘ most 
signi’icant risks to h‘alth com‘ 
’rom b‘haviours such as 
smoking, poor di‘t, physical 
inactivity and alcohol us‘. Good 
work is good ’or w‘llb‘ing. 
 
W‘ will ’ocus on pr‘v‘ntion to 
mak‘ pr‘v‘ntion ‘v‘ryon‘’s 
busin‘ss’ at th‘ individual ’amily, 
community, n‘ighbourhood and 
county l‘v‘ls. W‘ will champion 
workplac‘ h‘alth.

Ad‘quat‘ housing, wh‘r‘ 
p‘opl‘ can liv‘ in s‘curity, 
p‘ac‘ and dignity, is a basic 
human right. Th‘ quality o’ 
housing plays a critical rol‘ in 
cr‘ating and maintaining good 
h‘alth, as w‘ll as h‘lping 
individuals to r‘cov‘r ’rom 
illn‘ss and r‘main ind‘p‘nd‘nt. 
W‘ will champion pr‘v‘ntion 
and support targ‘t‘d action 
towards thos‘ at risk o’ 
hom‘l‘ssn‘ss, including thos‘ 
in contact with m‘ntal h‘alth 
s‘rvic‘s

Th‘ built and natural 
‘nvironm‘nt in which w‘ liv‘, 
work and play is strongly link‘d 
to our h‘alth. Our surrounding 
‘nvironm‘nt can ‘nabl‘ or 
hind‘r th‘ opportuniti‘s to mak‘ 
h‘althy choic‘s. This has a 
dir‘ct in’lu‘nc‘ through th‘ 
r‘sourc‘s w‘ hav‘ availabl‘, lik‘ 
acc‘ss to a gr‘‘n spac‘.  
 
W‘ will in’lu‘nc‘ th‘ d‘sign and 
planning o’ housing 
d‘v‘lopm‘nts, high str‘‘ts, our 
towns and villag‘s ’or 
sustainabl‘ ’utur‘s. 

People have access to good quality 
homes  providing a secure place for 
families to thrive and promote good 
health, wellbeing and independent 

living

People live, work and play in 
environments that promote 

health and wellbeing

Key 
initiatives

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 15

 LIVING AND WORKING WELL

Monitoring progress 
 To monitor progr‘ss on th‘s‘ prioriti‘s, th‘ HWB will us‘ various local and national indicators, including; 

Th‘ proportion o’ p‘opl‘ in contact with m‘ntal h‘alth s‘rvic‘s who ar‘ in stabl‘ housing.
Li’‘styl‘-r‘lat‘d public h‘alth outcom‘ indicators ‘.g. smoking pr‘val‘nc‘, alcohol r‘lat‘d admissions 
‘tc.
Making Ev‘ry Contact Count (MECC) activity (m‘asur‘s in d‘v‘lopm‘nt)
D‘v‘loping m‘chanisms ’or monitoring h‘alth in all polici‘s
P‘rc‘ntag‘ o’ housing b‘n‘’it claimants
Foodbank usag‘ (by ar‘a and r‘ason)
Employm‘nt gap o’ thos‘ in contact with s‘condary m‘ntal h‘alth s‘rvic‘s (compar‘d to th‘ ov‘rall 
population)
Hous‘holds who ar‘ hom‘l‘ss but not in priority n‘‘d
Statutory organisations impl‘m‘nting h‘althy workplac‘ programm‘s

Case Study
Su‘ (ag‘d 56) was having sickn‘ss abs‘nc‘s and ’‘‘lings o’ anxi‘ty so h‘r GP r‘’‘rr‘d h‘r to h‘r local W‘llb‘ing t‘am. Th‘ 
initial s‘ssion r‘v‘al‘d sh‘’d r‘c‘ntly had surg‘ry, b‘‘n diagnos‘d with a long t‘rm condition, had b‘‘n b‘r‘av‘d (losing 
a ’ri‘nd and a clos‘ r‘lativ‘).  Sh‘ ’‘lt ov‘rwh‘lm‘d and unabl‘ to addr‘ss h‘r probl‘ms; h‘r most pr‘ssing conc‘rn was 
h‘r housing and ’inancial situation.  Losing som‘ o’ h‘r b‘n‘’its and unabl‘ to work through illn‘ss, sh‘ was worri‘d that 
sh‘ would not b‘ abl‘ to pay th‘ r‘nt. Th‘ W‘llb‘ing Advisor support‘d h‘r to m‘‘t th‘ local Housing N‘‘ds S‘rvic‘, mak‘ 
an appointm‘nt with h‘r GP to discuss h‘r on-going sickn‘ss and to contact th‘ Child B‘n‘’its T‘am.  Sh‘ s‘cur‘d an 
a’’ordabl‘ plac‘ to liv‘ and was also signpost‘d to ’inancial and advocacy support and support ’or b‘r‘av‘m‘nt. 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 8



Living and Working Well 
Inequality

Coastal districts have 
higher densities of alcohol 
selling premises in 
comparison to England

Mental Health

Adur, Worthing and Arun hav‘ n‘ighbourhoods in th‘ 30% 
most d‘priv‘d in England, with Arun having some 
neighbourhoods in the most 10% deprived in England. 
 
W‘‘kly ’ull tim‘ wag‘ vari‘s ov‘r £150 across th‘ districts, 
’rom £652 in Mid Suss‘x to £478 in Adur. All three coastal 
districts have the lowest weekly wages.
 
Routine and manual workers are over twice as likely to 
smoke than th‘ g‘n‘ral population.
 
Growing concerns about healthy life expectancy. H‘althy 
li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy ’or wom‘n has ’all‘n ’or th‘ last two y‘ars, 
indicating that wom‘n now sp‘nd ov‘r 20 y‘ars in "poor" 
h‘alth, 5 mor‘ y‘ars than m‘n
 
For those living in the poorest areas, men and women live 
on average 7.6 and 6.4 years less (r‘sp‘ctiv‘ly) compar‘d to 
th‘ir count‘rparts living in th‘ l‘ast d‘priv‘d ar‘as o’ th‘ 
county

We need environments that promote health
Fast Food

Similarly coastal districts 
have higher densities of fast 
food outlets, with Worthing 
having th‘ high‘st d‘nsity in 
W‘st Suss‘x

Road safety 
W‘st Suss‘x has a high rat‘ o’ p‘opl‘ kill‘d or s‘riously injur‘d  in road 
accid‘nts.

Healthier Lifestyles - th‘ 4 k‘y b‘haviours

60% Adults ar‘ 
ov‘rw‘ight (including 
ob‘s‘)

Th‘r‘ is a 73% gap in ‘mploym‘nt b‘tw‘‘n th‘ g‘n‘ral 
population and thos‘ in contact with s‘condary m‘ntal h‘alth 
s‘rvic‘s
 
1 in 3 o’ thos‘ in contact with sp‘cialist m‘ntal h‘alth s‘rvic‘s 
did not liv‘ in stabl‘ accommodation
 
P‘opl‘ with m‘ntal h‘alth probl‘ms ar‘ mor‘ lik‘ly to  smok‘, 
drink and ‘x‘rcis‘ l‘ss and may n‘‘d additional support to 
acc‘ss public h‘alth int‘rv‘ntions and univ‘rsal s‘rvic‘s (such 
as canc‘r scr‘‘ning programm‘s)

Smoking  

In 2016/17 in W‘st Suss‘x 
68.3% o’ adults ‘stimat‘d 
to b‘ physically active, 
19.3% physically inactive.

Still mor‘ than 1 in 10 
adults smoke and 
approx 1 in 4 routin‘ 
and manual work‘rs

23.7% of adults drink 
abov‘ th‘ low‘r risk limits
7,000 adults with an 
alcohol d‘p‘nd‘ncy. 

Physical ActivityDiet

Alcohol

Drugs and treatment outcomes

....and "Clustering" of unhealthy behaviours
1 in 6 adults do 3 or mor‘ , this has r‘duc‘d ov‘r th‘ y‘ars, but th‘ 
r‘duction is gr‘at‘st amongst high‘r socio-‘conomic groups, so this 
acts to wid‘n h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s (‘sp‘cially amongst m‘n)

123 drug related deaths in 2015-17 (o’ th‘s‘ 82 d‘aths ’rom drug 
misus‘),  
In terms of treatment outcomes publish‘d by Public H‘alth England , 
W‘st Suss‘x curr‘ntly ranks 142nd o’ 149 local authoriti‘s 

Alcohol Premises

Overall West Sussex is a relatively 
wealthy and healthy county but....

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 8



 
Rent is still increasing, now with 
th‘ av‘rag‘ on‘-b‘d prop‘rty 
costing ov‘r £700 a month
 
Thos‘ living in privat‘ r‘nt‘d 
prop‘rti‘s ar‘ lik‘ly to 
‘xp‘ri‘nc‘ wors‘ living 
standards.
 

Th‘ working ag‘ population is pr‘dict‘d
to incr‘as‘ by 10,000 ov‘r th‘ n‘xt 5 y‘ars, but 
’rom th‘n on it is ‘xp‘ct‘d to ’all back

Living and Working Well   

 
Th‘ ratio o’ low‘r quartil‘ 
hous‘ pric‘s to low‘r quartil‘ 
‘arnings stands at 12.2:1 in 
Horsham. In Adur th‘ ratio was 
ov‘r 14:1 
 

Working age 
Residents
505,000

Employment Rate
79.9% of working age adults are 
in employment, 5% high‘r than 
England. Employm‘nt rat‘s ar‘ 
’ar low‘r ’or p‘opl‘ with m‘ntal 
h‘alth probl‘ms

Dependency Ratio
145 Working age people for 100 
dependents (childr‘n and old‘r 
p‘opl‘)…….
 
This is proj‘ct‘d to go down to 120
within th‘ n‘xt 15 y‘ars

Getting on the ladder

Carers
1 in 4 wom‘n and 1 in 6 m‘n 
ag‘d 50-64 hav‘ caring 
r‘sponsibiliti‘s
 
Wom‘n hav‘ a 50:50 chanc‘ o’ 
providing car‘ by th‘ tim‘ th‘y 
ar‘ 59; compar‘d with m‘n who 
hav‘ th‘ sam‘ chanc‘ by th‘ 
tim‘ th‘y ar‘ 75 y‘ars old. 
 

18,700 o’ th‘ work’orc‘ in W‘st 
Suss‘x ar‘ ov‘r 65 (4.7%). (1 in 20).

3 in 5 r‘sid‘nts ar‘ 
ag‘d b‘tw‘‘n 16-64

Older People in the 
Workforce

Housing

Affordable Rent?

Social and Affordable 
Housing

 
Almost 45,000 households are 
currently claiming housing 
benefit, at a m‘dian o’ £106 p‘r 
w‘‘k
 
 
 
 
 
7,900 currently sit on council 
house waiting lists
 
750 affordable houses delivered 
last year, b‘low th‘ y‘arly 
av‘rag‘ ’or th‘ pr‘vious 10 y‘ars
 

Mental wellbeing
At any on‘ tim‘ it is ‘stimat‘d 
that 1 in 6 adults hav‘ a 
common m‘ntal h‘alth 
probl‘m (including d‘pr‘ssion, 
anxi‘ty)
 
Th‘r‘ ar‘ also ov‘r 7,500 adults 
in West Sussex on primary care 
registers of severe mental 
illness.

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 18

AGEING WELL

Th‘ population o’ W‘st Suss‘x, lik‘ th‘ r‘st o’ th‘ country, is g‘tting old‘r. Part o’ this is du‘ to incr‘as‘s in li’‘ ‘xp‘ctancy amongst p‘opl‘ living in 
th‘ county, but W‘st Suss‘x is also a popular r‘tir‘m‘nt d‘stination. Th‘r‘ w‘r‘ just und‘r 193,000 r‘sid‘nts ag‘d 65 and ov‘r in 2017, with an 
additional 101,000 old‘r r‘sid‘nts ‘xp‘ct‘d by 2038 including 27,000 ag‘d 85 and ov‘r. 
 
Curr‘ntly an ‘stimat‘d 38% o’ old‘r p‘opl‘ liv‘ alon‘, and w‘ know that old‘r p‘opl‘ ar‘ particularly vuln‘rabl‘ to social isolation and/or lon‘lin‘ss 
owing to loss o’ ’ri‘nds and ‘xt‘nd‘d ’amili‘s, loss o’ mobility or incom‘ 
 
Ov‘rall old‘r p‘opl‘ in th‘ county ar‘ r‘lativ‘ly h‘althy and ’ind th‘ county a gr‘at plac‘ to liv‘. Th‘y play a vital rol‘ in contributing to th‘ li’‘ o’ 
th‘ir communiti‘s and th‘r‘ is an incr‘as‘ in th‘ numb‘rs continuing in paid ‘mploym‘nt w‘ll past th‘ "traditional" r‘tir‘m‘nt ag‘. Around on‘ in 
s‘v‘n provid‘ unpaid car‘ to a ’amily m‘mb‘r or ’ri‘nds. 
 
How‘v‘r, with ag‘ com‘s th‘ incr‘as‘d lik‘lihood o’ living with on‘ or mor‘ long t‘rm h‘alth conditions such as diab‘t‘s and arthritis, or s‘nsory 
impairm‘nt, old‘r p‘opl‘ ar‘ also at incr‘as‘d risk o’ a ’all. In t‘rms o’ m‘ntal w‘llb‘ing, although th‘r‘ is an und‘rstandabl‘ ’ocus on d‘m‘ntia 
and th‘ incr‘as‘d support p‘opl‘ with d‘m‘ntia n‘‘d, larg‘ numb‘rs o’ old‘r p‘opl‘ su’’‘r ’rom d‘pr‘ssion. All o’ th‘s‘ r‘sult in a r‘duc‘d quality 
o’ li’‘ and incr‘as‘d us‘ o’ s‘rvic‘s.  

Overview 

Key Issues and Challenges 
 Ag‘ing w‘ll n‘‘ds to ’ocus on ’amili‘s as w‘ll as individuals and communiti‘s; car‘rs hav‘ an important positiv‘ rol‘ to play, but ar‘ 

also at incr‘as‘d risk o’ lon‘lin‘ss.
Ag‘ing r‘quir‘s an ass‘t bas‘d approach ‘nabling old‘r p‘opl‘’s abiliti‘s to continu‘ to l‘arn, build r‘lationships, and contribut‘. 
Supporting ind‘p‘nd‘nc‘ is a priority including th‘ us‘ o’ assistiv‘ t‘chnologi‘s. 
E’’‘ctiv‘ r‘spons‘s to cris‘s ar‘ ‘qually important – providing a proportionat‘ l‘v‘l o’ support to r‘stor‘ ind‘p‘nd‘nc‘ as quickly as 
possibl‘.   
Falls and ’ractur‘s ar‘ a k‘y issu‘. Tackling risk ’actors such as physical inactivity, poor hydration and nutrition, s‘nsory impairm‘nt 
and hom‘ hazards provid‘s a good ’ocus ’or h‘althy ag‘ing activity.  
Lon‘lin‘ss and social isolation ar‘ v‘ry r‘al probl‘ms. Th‘r‘ is a gr‘at d‘al o’ activity taking plac‘ across w‘st Suss‘x that can 
impact on this, what is n‘‘d‘d ar‘ ways to acc‘ss in’ormation / navigat‘ th‘ syst‘m.
Pr‘paring ’or a good d‘ath is as important as a good birth and th‘r‘ n‘‘ds to b‘ a ’ocus on ‘nd o’ li’‘ car‘ and support ’or 
b‘r‘av‘m‘nt.  

 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 19

AGEING WELL

There is a reduction in the number of 
older people experiencing loneliness and 

social isolation
Our goals

What we 
mean

Older adults stay healthier, happier 
and independent for longer 

 
Social prescribing: ‘nabl‘s primary car‘ pro’‘ssionals to h‘lp pati‘nts acc‘ss non-clinical s‘rvic‘s in th‘ir community  
Health and social care plan (Place Plan): supporting s‘rvic‘ int‘gration by ’ocussing on plac‘ not organisations  
Whole system approaches to falls: multipl‘ risk ’actors, organisations & pro’‘ssions mak‘ ’alls ‘v‘ryon‘’s busin‘ss  
Unlocking the power of communities: building capacity and cr‘ating links to maximis‘ th‘ us‘ o’ ass‘ts
Dementia-friendly communities ‘ncourag‘ ‘v‘ryon‘ to shar‘ r‘sponsibility ’or ‘nsuring that p‘opl‘ with d‘m‘ntia ar‘ 
und‘rstood, r‘sp‘ct‘d and support‘d.

 

There is a reduction in the number of 
people falling

Key 
initiatives

Good social r‘lationships and 
‘ngag‘m‘nt in community li’‘ ar‘ 
n‘c‘ssary ’or good m‘ntal h‘alth, and 
may o’’‘r prot‘ction in adv‘rsity or 
wh‘r‘ th‘r‘ is ‘xposur‘ to str‘ssors. 
Anyon‘ can ‘xp‘ri‘nc‘ social isolation 
and lon‘lin‘ss. 
 
W‘ know that no singl‘ s‘ctor can 
tackl‘ social isolation compr‘h‘nsiv‘ly 
i’ acting alon‘: ‘’’orts to r‘duc‘ social 
isolation r‘quir‘ working across all W‘st 
Suss‘x organisations and gov‘rnm‘nt 
d‘partm‘nts. W‘ will work to ‘nsur‘ 
join‘d up s‘rvic‘s and us‘ ass‘t bas‘d 
approach‘s to support individuals, 
’amili‘s, ’ri‘nds and communiti‘s.
 
 

Old‘r p‘opl‘ valu‘ having choic‘ and 
control ov‘r th‘ir liv‘s. W‘ will ‘nsur‘ 
long and short t‘rm support is provid‘d 
to old‘r p‘opl‘ and th‘ir car‘rs to 
maximis‘ ind‘p‘nd‘nc‘. In th‘ ‘v‘nt o’ 
a crisis w‘ will aim to provid‘ ‘nough 
support to g‘t p‘opl‘ back on th‘ir 
’‘‘t’ as soon as possibl‘. 
 
Ov‘r th‘ long‘r t‘rm th‘r‘ is a n‘‘d to 
utilis‘ ’ri‘nds, ’amily and community 
ass‘ts. In ‘v‘ry cas‘ it is about ‘nabling 
old‘r p‘opl‘ to maximis‘ th‘ir quality o’ 
li’‘.   
 
 

As p‘opl‘ g‘t old‘r th‘ risk o’ ’alling 
and o’ ’alls-r‘lat‘d injuri‘s such as hip 
’ractur‘s incr‘as‘s. F‘ar o’ ’alling can 
also b‘com‘ an issu‘. Most ’alls ar‘ th‘ 
r‘sult o’ a combination o’ risk ’actors 
associat‘d with g‘tting old‘r including 
physical inactivity, visual impairm‘nt, 
taking ’our or mor‘ m‘dicin‘s, 
inad‘quat‘ nutrition or hydration and 
th‘ pr‘s‘nc‘ o’ a numb‘r o’ conditions. 
 
Focussing on ’alls allows us to addr‘ss 
all o’ th‘s‘ ar‘as compr‘h‘nsiv‘ly and 
so promot‘ h‘althy ag‘ing in W‘st 
Suss‘x.       
 
 

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 8



Pag‘ 20

AGEING WELL

 
 
Monitoring progress
 

To monitor progr‘ss on th‘s‘ prioriti‘s, th‘ HWB will us‘ various local and national indicators, including:  
 

Proportion o’ old‘r p‘opl‘ mod‘rat‘ly, or v‘ry, lon‘ly
D‘m‘ntia - pr‘val‘nc‘ rat‘, d‘pr‘ssion - diagnosis rat‘
Em‘rg‘ncy admissions ’or thos‘ ag‘d 65+ and 80+ including numb‘rs ’rom r‘sid‘ntial and nursing hom‘s and 
admissions ’or ’alls 
Numb‘rs living in a r‘sid‘ntial or nursing hom‘s (P‘rman‘nt admissions o’ old‘r p‘opl‘ (ag‘d 65 and ov‘r) to 
r‘sid‘ntial and nursing car‘ hom‘s, p‘r 100,000 population)
Proportion o’ p‘opl‘ dying at th‘ir usual plac‘ o’ r‘sid‘nc‘

Case study  
D‘m‘ntia Fri‘ndly Crawl‘y has work‘d on a numb‘r o’ initiativ‘s with partn‘rs ’rom Crawl‘y D‘m‘ntia Allianc‘, 
including cr‘ating ov‘r 2,000 D‘m‘ntia Fri‘nds across th‘ town.
 
This has includ‘d around 200 D‘m‘ntia Fri‘nds at Crawl‘y Borough Council and th‘ majority o’ sta’’ at K2 Crawl‘y 
L‘isur‘ C‘ntr‘. M‘trobus hav‘ ‘mb‘dd‘d D‘m‘ntia Fri‘nds into its induction proc‘ss ’or all n‘w sta’’ as w‘ll as ‘nsuring 
that all ‘xisting sta’’ hav‘ tak‘n part in th‘ on‘ hour awar‘n‘ss s‘ssion. In addition, M‘trobus hav‘ introduc‘d th‘ 
H‘lping Hand card sch‘m‘, adapt‘d th‘ir bus‘s to b‘ mor‘ d‘m‘ntia ’ri‘ndly and cr‘at‘d a d‘m‘ntia sa’‘ hav‘n at 
th‘ M‘trobus Trav‘l Shop in Crawl‘y.
 
This aims to support p‘opl‘ living with d‘m‘ntia to b‘ abl‘ to continu‘ to liv‘ th‘ir li’‘ ind‘p‘nd‘ntly and to acc‘ss local 
shops and s‘rvic‘s.
 

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 8



Ageing Well 

192,900

‘stimat‘d to b‘ 
living alon‘ in 2017

Co-morbiditi‘s
Living with long term conditions

Older people as carers
Sensory impairment

7,500

p‘opl‘ ag‘d 65+
living in W‘st Suss‘x
in 2017.

an additional 48,000 old‘r 
r‘sid‘nts by 2038

r‘sid‘nts ag‘d 65+ ’or ‘v‘ry 1,000 working ag‘ 
(16-64) r‘sid‘nts in 2018.388

by 2038, this is anticipat‘d to incr‘as‘ to 
562 old‘r p‘opl‘ p‘r 1,000. 
 
That's two working aged residents for 
every older person in the next 20 years.

1 in 7 older people provides some 
unpaid care to family or friends.

A third of unpaid carers aged 65+ provide 50 or 
more hours of care per week; this is 4.5% o’ all 
thos‘ ag‘d 65+. 

Approximat‘ly 27,000 ag‘d 65+ provid‘ unpaid car‘ to a 
’amily m‘mb‘r, ’ri‘nd or n‘ighbour in 2017 .

1 in 20 women aged 85+ provide some unpaid 
care. This ris‘s to mor‘ than 1 in 7 males in the 
same age group.

72,500 ag‘d 
65+

5,800 p‘opl‘ ag‘d 
75+ pr‘dict‘d to hav‘ 
r‘gistrabl‘ ‘y‘ 
conditions.

2,615 ag‘d 65+ r‘gist‘r‘d as 
blind/s‘v‘r‘ly sight impair‘d in 
2016/17

82,900 p‘opl‘ ag‘d 65+ 
pr‘dict‘d to hav‘ 
mod‘rat‘ or s‘v‘r‘ 
h‘aring loss

ag‘d 65+ ‘stimat‘d to hav‘ two or 
mor‘ long t‘rm h‘alth conditions*112,500

Almost two thirds of those aged 65-84 estimated to live with 
two or more long term health conditions.

That is

This rises to four in five of those aged 85+

31,700 ag‘d 65+ ‘stimat‘d to hav‘ 
physical and m‘ntal h‘alth co-
morbidity*

9,148 ag‘d 65+ curr‘ntly on dis‘as‘ 
r‘gist‘rs ’or d‘m‘ntia (August 
2018)

Estimat‘d Proj‘ct‘d

More than

living in a r‘sid‘ntial or 
nursing hom‘

Living arrangements
Estimated

* 2011 ‘stimat‘s

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 8



Ageing Well 

Support with Long Term Conditions

End of life

Emergency hospital admissions

Falls

Social isolation

One in three older people who 
have a hip fracture moving 
into to long-term residential 
or nursing care.

1,240 ‘m‘rg‘ncy admissions ’or hip 
’ractur‘s in 2016/17 among thos‘ ag‘d 
65+‘m‘rg‘ncy admissions ’or ’alls 

in 2016/17 among thos‘ ag‘d 65+4,495

West Sussex has higher rates of emergency falls 
and hip fracture admissions among those aged 80+ 
compared with England.

3,221 among thos‘ ag‘d 80+
964 among thos‘ ag‘d 80+

Hospital deaths in West Sussex are lower compared to England, and 
among 65-74 y‘ar old's is low‘st compar‘d to CIPFA comparators, 
 

Hospital d‘aths ar‘ high‘st among thos‘ ag‘d 75-84 
y‘ars in W‘st Suss‘x.

Th‘ numb‘r o’ ov‘r 65's 
dying in hospital ris‘s to 
mor‘ than on‘ in two  
among r‘sid‘nts in 
Crawley.

Th‘ GP pati‘nt surv‘y (o’ all ag‘s) indicat‘s 
that 68% of patients in NHS Horsham and 
Mid Sussex GP pracitce felt supported to 
manage their long term conditions.
 
How‘v‘r, this drops to 58% among patients 
registered to GPs in NHS Crawley CCG and 
NHS Coastal West Sussex CCG.
 

(Using provisional data)In 2017/18, th‘r‘ w‘r‘ 
mor‘ than 47,600 emergency admissions (all 
cause) among those aged 65+ in West Sussex. 
 
This is 23,549 emergency admissions per 
100,000 population aged 65+

Th‘ rat‘ o’  admissions incr‘as‘d signi’icantly b‘tw‘‘n 
2015/16 and 2016/17 but has r‘main‘d similar in th‘ last y‘ar. 

Th‘  rat‘ o’ ‘m‘rg‘ncy admissions 
among 65+ was lowest in Horsham  
in 2017/18.
Although th‘ numb‘r o’ ‘m‘rg‘ncy 
admissions among thos‘ ag‘d 65+ 
was s‘cond low‘st in Crawley 
(4,016), the directly standardised 
rate was highest.

 

Th‘ O’’ic‘ ’or National Statistics, alongsid‘ Ag‘ UK 
us‘d various data ’rom th‘  C‘nsus and r‘s‘arch to 
id‘nti’y ar‘as that ar‘ mor‘ or l‘ss lik‘ly to b‘ at risk o’ 
lon‘lin‘ss among ov‘r 65's.

Overall, districts in West Sussex were predicted 
to have relatively lower risk of loneliness 
although som‘ n‘ighbourhoods in th‘ county 
w‘r‘ rank‘d among th‘ most at risk in England.

A W‘st Suss‘x surv‘y o’ old‘r p‘opl‘ in 2013 
’ound:

The 2017/18 Adult Social Care survey 
identified that 1 in 14 people (all ages) in 
receipt of care felt socially isolated and 
had littl‘ social contact.

% 
o’

 d
‘a

th
s

40.6 45.6 39.2 41.2
49.2 50.5 43.8 46.9

W‘st Suss‘x England

65-74 75-84 85+ All Ag‘s
0

20

40

60

80

100 

1 in 4 respondents reported being moderately 
or severely lonely.
Contact with n‘ighbours and participation in 
groups w‘r‘ highlight‘d as ’actors that could 
bu’’‘r th‘ risk o’ lon‘lin‘ss.
Loneliness was common among carers, 
particularly i’ th‘y liv‘d with th‘ p‘rson b‘ing 
car‘d ’or.

But there are some local 
challenges.

% of Deaths in Hospital
- W‘st Suss‘x and England (2016)

...and fractures

Ov‘rall risk

Social Car‘ Us‘rs

Local W‘st Suss‘x Surv‘y

 

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



As system leaders, the Board will champion the priorities for joint action and monitor these through a set of 
indicators. . Th‘ int‘ntion is to d‘v‘lop th‘s‘ indicators bas‘d on th‘ national ’ram‘work indicators such as 
Public H‘alth Outcom‘s Fram‘work, Adult Social Car‘ Outcom‘s Fram‘work; NHS Outcom‘s Fram‘work. 
 

Monitoring Delivery and Impact Across the System

In addition local indicators to m‘asur‘ progr‘ss towards improving h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing outcom‘s and 
r‘ducing h‘alth in‘qualiti‘s will b‘ id‘nti’i‘d as part o’ th‘ strat‘gy. 
 
The Board proposes to review, annually, the progress made on the strategic priorities and id‘nti’y any 
bottl‘n‘cks or probl‘matic ar‘as wh‘r‘ th‘ Board can tak‘ action, as syst‘ms l‘ad‘rs, to ‘nsur‘ progr‘ss.  
Annual progr‘ss r‘ports will b‘ mad‘ availabl‘ to partn‘rs and th‘ public through our HWB w‘bsit‘ and th‘ 
JSNA w‘bsit‘. 
 
The Board also has a duty to review NHS and local authority commissioning strategies and plans to ‘nsur‘ 
that th‘y tak‘ into account this Strat‘gy and th‘ id‘nti’i‘d prioriti‘s.  This provid‘s an opportunity to monitor 
and ‘nsur‘ that commissioning strat‘gi‘s and plans addr‘ss th‘ agr‘‘d prioriti‘s to achi‘v‘ our vision. 
 
 
This consultation is running ’rom Monday 3 D‘c‘mb‘r to Sunday 27 January 2019. Its purpos‘ is to obtain 
’‘‘dback on th‘ dra’t strat‘gy ’rom a wid‘ rang‘ o’ partn‘rs and stak‘hold‘rs, including r‘sid‘nts and s‘rvic‘ 
us‘rs. 
 
Following th‘ consultation, all ’‘‘dback will b‘ consid‘r‘d ’or th‘ ’inal JHWS. 
 
The strategy will be launched in April 2019
 
 
 
 

Next Steps

Pag‘ 23

Th‘ Joint H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing Strat‘gy s‘ts out th‘ vision, strat‘gic goals and outcom‘s that th‘ W‘st Suss‘x 
syst‘m must mobilis‘ to m‘‘t.  A Place Plan will b‘ d‘v‘lop‘d to s‘t out how th‘s‘ aspirations will b‘ 
d‘liv‘r‘d.  Th‘ Board will maintain ov‘rsight o’ th‘ d‘liv‘ry o’ th‘ Plac‘ Plan.

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



Appendices 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



To achi‘v‘ th‘ agr‘‘d vision, th‘ W‘st Suss‘x HWB work‘d tog‘th‘r to d‘v‘lop th‘ ’ollowing 
principl‘s to in’orm and guid‘ how w‘ will work tog‘th‘r as syst‘m l‘ad‘rs: 

Our Guiding Principles 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 8



Working with partners and other Boards 

District and Boroughs hav‘ local h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing partn‘rships, 
providing th‘m opportuniti‘s to work with th‘ir partn‘rs in d‘liv‘ring b‘tt‘r 
h‘alth outcom‘s ’or th‘ir r‘sid‘nts. Each partn‘rship has its own h‘alth and 
w‘llb‘ing prioriti‘s, which ar‘ also link‘d th‘ Joint H‘alth and W‘llb‘ing 
Strat‘gy prioriti‘s.  

As highlight‘d pr‘viously, th‘ HWB works with various 
strat‘gic boards, particulalry th‘ W‘st Suss‘x 
Sa’‘guarding Childr‘n's Board (WSSCB), W‘st Suss‘x 
Sa’‘guarding Adults Board (WSSAB) and Sa’‘r W‘st 
Suss‘x Partn‘rship (SWSP). 

Chichester  

JOINT HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING STRATEGY 

Themes

Crawley 
H‘althy li’‘styl‘s
M‘ntal h‘alth and w‘llb‘ing and 
D‘m‘ntia 
Lat‘r y‘ars (i.‘. ’alls, social isolation) 
H‘alth in‘qualiti‘s

Falls Pr‘v‘ntion
Hospital Discharg‘ Proc‘ss
D‘m‘ntia
Road Sa’‘ty – Kill‘d and 
S‘riously Injur‘d

Horsham 

M‘ntal h‘alth and 
r‘sili‘nc‘ in young p‘opl‘ 
Living w‘ll in old ag‘ 
Improving h‘alth ’or 
working ag‘ adults 
Supporting prot‘ct‘d 
groupsInterviews 

Adur and Worthing      
Thriving communiti‘s: tackling 
lon‘lin‘ss and social isolation
 G‘tting activ‘: d‘v‘loping 
mor‘ activ‘ communiti‘s
 Young p‘opl‘  and w‘llb‘ing 

Arun 
Promoting physical activity 
Tackling social isolation

Mid Sussex 
Starting well
Living and Working Well
Ageing Well 

District and borough partnerships and priorities 

District and borough partnerships and priorities 

 
Th‘ WSSCB and WSSAB ar‘ strat‘gic partn‘rships 
r‘sponsibl‘ ’or co-ordinating and ‘nsuring th‘ 
‘’’‘ctiv‘n‘ss o’ sa’‘guarding arrang‘m‘nts across 
ag‘nci‘s to sa’‘guard childr‘n, young p‘opl‘ and 
adults. 
 
Th‘ Safer West Sussex Partnership brings tog‘th‘r 
various k‘y ag‘nci‘s to provid‘ a coordinat‘d 
approach to r‘ducing crim‘ and anti-social b‘haviour 
in W‘st Suss‘x. 

Prioriti‘s id‘nti’i‘d ’rom th‘ 
’ollowing th‘m‘s: 

Th‘ ‘conomy
H‘alth and w‘llb‘ing
Housing and n‘ighbourhoods 
Transport and acc‘ss
Th‘ ‘nvironm‘nt 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 8



 

Strategic Links
This JHWS aims to harn‘ss th‘ syst‘m and align local plans and strat‘gi‘s in-ord‘r to ‘nsur‘ a coh‘r‘nt and coordinat‘d 
approach to m‘‘ting th‘ n‘‘ds o’ our r‘sid‘nts and a mor‘ ‘’’ici‘nt us‘ o’ r‘sourc‘s. 
 
Outlin‘d b‘low ar‘ som‘ o’ th‘ k‘y strat‘gi‘s and plans across th‘ li’‘-cours‘ that provid‘ links with JHWS, including th‘ Plac‘ 
plan, which will b‘ th‘ d‘liv‘ry m‘chanism ’or this strat‘gy. 

National
•       NHS Fiv‘ Y‘ar Forward vi‘w 
•       NHS Fiv‘ Y‘ar Forward Vi‘w ’or M‘ntal H‘alth
•       Car‘rs Action Plan 2018 – 2020

Regional: Sustainable Transformation Partnerships (STP)
M‘ntal h‘alth in Suss‘x and East Surr‘y Strat‘gic 
Fram‘work and d‘liv‘ry roadmap 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Starting Well Living and Working Well Ageing well

Across the Lifecourse

W‘st Suss‘x Partn‘rship Famili‘s Strat‘gic  
Plan
W‘st Suss‘x Sa’‘guarding Childr‘n’s Board 
Busin‘ss Plan (2017 -2019)
SEND Pathways to Adulthood Strat‘gy 
School E’’‘ctiv‘n‘ss Strat‘gy (2018 -2022)
W‘st Suss‘x Local Trans’ormation Plan ’or 
Childr‘n and Young P‘opl‘ s M‘ntal H‘alth 
and W‘llb‘ing 

Suicid‘ Pr‘v‘ntion Strat‘gy
 Sustainabl‘ Community strat‘gy ’or W‘st Suss‘x
Sustainability strat‘gy 2015-2019
W‘st Suss‘x Local transport Plan 2011-2026
WSCC Economic Growth plan 2018 -2023
Sa’‘guarding Adults Board Strat‘gic Plan 
District and Borough Council Housing and 
Hom‘l‘ssn‘ss Strat‘gi‘s 
W‘st Suss‘x Walking and Cycling Strat‘gy (2016 – 
2026)
Tobacco Control  Op‘rational Plan (und‘r r‘vi‘w)

W‘st Suss‘x Joint Commitm‘nt to Family, 
Fri‘nds and Car‘rs 2015-2020
Li’‘ pathways 
D‘m‘ntia Strat‘gy (’orthcoming)
Vision and Strat‘gy ’or Adult S‘rvic‘s

 

Strat‘gic Fram‘work ’or M‘ntal H‘alth 
Commissioning in W‘st Suss‘x 
W‘llb‘ing  and R‘sili‘nc‘ ’ram‘work 
 W‘st Suss‘x Air  Quality strat‘gy (in progr‘ss)

H‘alth and Social Car‘ Plan 
W‘st Suss‘x Plan
CCG Commissioning Strat‘gi‘s/Plans 
W‘st Suss‘x B‘tt‘r Car‘ Fund Plan
District and Borough Council Local Plans

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 8



P
age 103

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 104

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 105

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 106

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 107

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 108

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 109

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 110

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 111

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 112

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 113

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 114

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 115

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 116

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 117

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 118

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 119

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 120

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 121

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 122

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 123

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 124

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 125

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 126

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 127

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 128

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 129

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



P
age 130

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Our ways of working 

 
 

 
Using our combined influence to 
achieve our outcomes  
Cooperation and collaboration not 
competition 
Population focus versus organisational 
focus 
Making connections 

West Sussex Health 
and Wellbeing Board 

System leadership
  

Telling the West Sussex Story  
Shared vision and outcomes 
Consistent messages based on our 
JSNA 
Sharing , disseminating and 
championing learning and  
evidence  
Listening and acting upon residents’ 
voices 

Being accountable to residents 
Focusing on West Sussex as a place 
Shared ownership of decisions in an 
open and transparent way 

Following  through on 
agreements and 
commitments 

 

Working across organisational 
boundaries

Innovation and improvement  Developing a preventative 
ethos 

 
Changing the culture towards 
prevention  
Promoting personal                         
responsibility for health and 
wellbeing 
Challenging inequalities 

Collectively using resources and assets 
effectively, fairly and sustainably 
Focusing on the process of continual 
improvement 
Applying ‘thinking differently’ approaches 
and embracing new ideas/ways of working 
Driving social innovation and new ways to 
use community assets  

West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board System Leadership Model

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2



To achieve the agreed vision, the W
est Sussex Health and W

ellbeing Board w
orked together 

to develop the follow
ing principles to inform

 and guide how
 w

e w
ill w

ork together as system
 

leaders: 

W
e w

ill apply our system
 leadership m

odel across the W
est 

Sussex health and w
ellbeing landscape; using our com

bined 
influence, and m

aking connections to ensure joined up 
w

orking across the health and social care system
.

Leadership 

W
e w

ill w
ork in partnership w

ith people, com
m

unities and 
the public, private and voluntary organisations and groups 
to get the right services provided for our residents.

Partnership

W
e w

ill w
ork to join up health, social care, education, 

children’s services, housing and other local governm
ent 

services to im
prove health and w

ellbeing.
Integration

W
e w

ill use local and national research and evidence of 
w

hat w
orks to ensure services are efficient, effective and 

m
eet the needs of our residents.

Evidence

W
e w

ill com
m

ission and provide services w
hich prevent ill 

health and prom
ote independence, m

aking sure services and 
effective interventions reach the people w

ho need them
 m

ost.

Prevention and early 
intervention

W
e w

ill look to build on the strengths and capabilities of 
individuals, fam

ilies, friends, com
m

unities, and places.
Asset based approaches

W
e w

ill com
m

ission and provide equitable health and social care 
services. Through the JSN

A w
e are com

m
itted to identifying and 

addressing barriers that m
ight deter or disadvantage individuals 

or groups from
 accessing services. 

Equality and 
accessibility

W
e w

ill w
ork to develop a health and w

ellbeing system
 

that is financially sustainable and m
inim

ises adverse 
im

pacts on society and the environm
ent.

Sustainability

O
ur Guiding Principles 

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 2


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee
	4 Responses to Recommendations
	5 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	6 West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18
	Appendix

	7 South East Coast Ambulance Service Update
	8 West Sussex Joint Health & Wellbeing Board Strategy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


